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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To

The Members of

VISHVARAJ ENVIRONMENT LIMITED

(Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)

REPORT ON AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the Standalone Financial Statements of VISHVARAJ ENVIRONMENT LIMITED
(Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at 31°' March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes of Equity for the year then ended,
and notes to the Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary of material accounting policies
and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31" March, 2025, its Profit, total
comprehensive income, its Cash Flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. There are no matters to
be reported as key matters during the year under audit. i
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Directors report with annexures, but does
not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Standalone Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind
AS prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of
Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.



As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the provisions of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Qrder”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the
order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.



(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on March 31,
2025 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, we report that being private
company on the balance sheet date i.e March 31, 2025 this clause is not applicable to the
company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts having
any material foreseeable losses during the year ended March 31, 2025.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025.
iv.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note no. 40(e) to the financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity (ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;



(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note no. 40(f) to the financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity (ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
PErsons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide dny guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

v. The dividend paid during the year by the Company is in compliance with section 123 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software’s for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for ali relevant transactions recorded in the
software’s. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance
of the audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, audit trail has been
preserved by the Company as per statutory requirements for the record retention.

FOR J. P. JOSHI & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 116953W P
CA J. P. JOSHI

PARTNER

M.NO. 102218

UDIN:- 25102218BMIQFM5024

PLACE: NAGPUR
DATE: September 5, 2025



“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report of VISHVARAJ ENVIRONMENT LIMITED (Formerly
known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)

Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of VISHVARAJ ENVIRONMENT LIMITED (Formerly known as Vishvaraj
Environment Private Limited) (“the Company”), of even date

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that-

(i) In respect of the Company’s property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
asset:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use
assets

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets;

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, Property, Plant
and Equipment and right-of-use assets have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals: no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification:

(c) Based on our examination of the lease agreement for building registered sale deed / transfer
deed / conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title in respect of immovable
properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements
are duly executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements
included under Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the
balance sheet date.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use
assets and intangible assets during the year.

(e) Inour opinion and According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings
have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

(i) (a) As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable
intervals by the Management. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancy of 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on physical verification of stocks by the
management as compared to book records.

(b) As explained to us and based on the information and records provided, the Company has
been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of 35 crore, in aggregate, from banks and
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has Submitted
Debtors, Stock Statements etc. as and when called by the Bank.

(iii) (a) During the year the Company has not made investments in, nor provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
Companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties except to its subsidiaries
as mentioned in note no 37.2 [Refer Note no 37.2] -
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

In our opinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of loans,
during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and
receipts of interest are generally regular as per stipulation.

In respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount remaining
outstanding as at the balance sheet date
No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or
extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same
parties
The Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year.
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In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
loans, investment, guarantees, and security made in subsidiary Company. Further Section
186 of Companies Act 2013 not applicable to Company being the Company is in
infrastructure business. [Refer Note no 34 and 37.2]

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable.

Company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government

under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act and hence clause 3(vi) of the order
is not applicable.

(vii)  (a) According to the records made available to us, Company is regular in depositing undisputed

statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. According to the information and
explanation given to us there were no outstanding statutory dues as on March 31, 2025 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no statutory dues

referred to in sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited on account of any dispute.




(viii)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) (@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the

(x)

(b

—_—

(e)

(f)

(a)

(b)

opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not declared
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for
which they were obtained

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, funds raised on
short term basis have not been utilized for long term purposes. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(d) of
the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, accordingly, clause 3(ix) (e) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate Companies. Accordingly, clause 3(ix) (f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x) (a) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3(x) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (@) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or any

(xii)

(xiii)

(b)

(c)

fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government;

According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle-blower complaints had
been received by the Company

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, where applicable and
the details have been disclosed in the notes to accounts of the financial statements, etc., as
required by the applicable accounting standards;



(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(b)

(xwvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

The Company has Internal Audit System commensurate with the size and nature of its
business. The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered.

On the basis of the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year

the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, there is no core investment Company within the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable

Based on our examination, the Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and
in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

On the information obtained from the management and audit procedures performed and on
the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we
are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of Balance Sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the Balance Sheet date; We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

Based on our examination, the Company has transferred fund under section 135 of the Act as
per details given in the financial statement. [Refer Note no 31.2]

FOR J.P JOSHI & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

CA J.P. JOSHI
PARTNER

M.NO. 102218
UDIN: - 25102218BMIQFMS5024

PLACE: NAGPUR
DATE: September 5, 2025



VISHVARAJ ENVIRONMENT LIMITED
(Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)

“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub—section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements
of VISHVARAJ ENVIRONMENT LIMITED (Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)
(‘The Company’) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statement of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements,. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

A Company's internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of the standalone financial statement for external purpose in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements includes those policies and procedure that

1. pertains to maintenance of records that, in reasonable details, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and disposition of the assets of the Company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transaction are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of standalone financial statement in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditure of the Company are being made
only in accordance with authorization of management and directors of the Company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on
the standalone financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over with
reference to Standalone Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to the
standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements were operating effectively as of March 31, 2025, based on the internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR J.P JOSHI & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

A

CA J.P JOSHI

PARTNER

M.NO. 102218

UDIN: -25102218BMIQFM5024

PLACE: NAGPUR
DATE: September 5, 2025



Vishvaraj Environment Limited (Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)
CIN: U74999MH2008PLC1B6950

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

- As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023
Particulars Note no. As at March 31, 2025 (Restated) (Restated)
ASSETS
1) Non-current assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 4 1,770.51 1,782.82 1,294 07
b) Right-of-use assets 5 28534 381.55 47234
) Intangible assets 19 116.77 218,75 308.09
d) Financial assets
1) Investments 7 56,952.61 19,636.84 1963384
il Trade receivables 13 5,460.51 4,197.07 2,880.98
i) Loans 9 15,998.91 7,725.04 7,014.38
w) Other financial assets 10 3,366.80 3,553.08 9,67097
e) Deterred tax assets [net) 11 12,955.08 3,598.12 3,469.28
f) Income tax assets {net) - - 20.58
g) Other non-current assets 12 161.35 177.24 174,72
Total non-current assets 97,067.88 41,370.51 44,939.25
2) Current assets
aj Inventories 8 543179 B.556.17 5,200.55
b} Financial assets
i} Trade recewables 13 £5,628.99 45,605.12 35,674.57
1) Cash and cash equivalents 14 2,30891 896717 1,782.44
i) Bank balances other than (i) above 15 4,589.01 2,534.73 537.94
) Loans 9 2,106.79 1,152.84 58.79
v) Other financial assets 10 17,035.40 10,603.04 Ba5.32
) Other current assets 12 11,532.22 3447243 3,790.70
Total current assets 1,28,633.11 80,861.50 47,890.31
Tatal assets 2,25,700.99 1,22,232.01 92,829.56
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity share capital 16 7,100.00 7,100.00 7,100.00
b) Other equity 17 66,356.61 38,039.46 28,824 86
Total equity 73,456.63 45,139.46 35,924.86
Liabilities
1) Non-current liabilities
a} Financial liablities
i) Borrowings 18 26,086 94 - 44.42
i) Lease liabilities 5.1 188.00 275.39 363.14
) Trade payables
(a) Total putstanding dues of micro and small enterprises £ . -
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditars ather than micro and small enterprises 3,145.86 1,859.02 757.23
) Other financial habilities 19 667.01 603.63 546.27
b} Other non current liabilities 22 15,573.13 17,710.52 15,556.90
) Provisions 20 2,710.96 2,047.57 1,422.78
Total non-current liabilities 48,371.90 22,496.13 18,690.74
2) Current liabilities
a) Financial habilities
1] Borrowings 18 9,250.81 38.19 B,188.17
i) Lease liabilities 5.1 142.73 148.26 139.91
i) Trade payables 21
{a) Tatal outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 3,080.71 1,332 16 546.14
{b) Tetal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 7688621 226100 i
W] Other financial habilities 19 197.73 197.73 469.13
b) Other current liabilities 22 12.557.44 5,186.80 6,340 28
o} Provisions 20 37.3% 42.17 5133
d) Current tax habilities (net) 23 1,719.48 40.20 -
Total current liabilities 1,03,872 46 54,596.42 38,213.96
Total equity and liabilities 2,25,700.99 1,22,232.01 92,829.56
The accompanying material accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the 1-45
financial statements.

In terms of our report attached of even date

For and an behalf of Board of Directors of
Vishvaraj Environment Limited
{Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)

e o S

CA I.P. Joshi Suresh Agiwal
Partner Director
M. No. 102218 DIN: 016604

UDIN:- 25102218BMICFMS024

Place: Nagpur
Date: September 5, 2025

Chief Financial Officer

J""_" L
mit Sonkusare
Company Secretary
M No.: F11853

Nadkarni

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 5, 2025




Vishvaraj Environment Limited (Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)
CIN: U74999MH2008PLC186950

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are % in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Particiilars Mdiaiis For the year ended March| For the year ended March
I 31,2025 31, 2024 (Restated)
I Revenue from operations 24 1,40,504.88 1,05,854.27
. Other income 25 5,912.02 5,752.11
1. Total income (1+11) 1,46,416.90 1,11,606.38
. Expenses
(a} Cost of purchases and contract expenses 26 56,898.78 84,397.36
(b) Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 27 3,124.38 (3,355.62)
(c} Employee benefits expense 28 9,737.89 7,700.40
(d} Finance costs 29 2,233.15 2,239.53
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 30 610.80 523.88
(f) Other expenses 31 4,544.96 3,782.79
Total expenses 1,17,149.96 95,288.34
V. Profit before tax (I11-1V) 29,266.94 16,318.04
VL. Tax expense/(credit) 32
(a) Current tax 6,501.35 3,431.56
{b) Deferred tax (credit) (9,354.96) (128.01)
Total tax expense/(credit) (2,853.61) 3,303.55
Vil Profit after tax (V-Vi) 32,120.55 13,014.49
VIl | Other comprehensive loss
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
1) Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability (7.95) (3.29)
ii} Income tax relating to above 32 2.00 0.83
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (5.95) (2.46)
Total comprehensive income for the year (Vil+Vin) 32,114.60 13,012.03
IX. Earning per share of face value of X 5/- each 33
Basic (in X) 22.62 217
Diluted (in ) 22.62 9.17
The accompanying material accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the 145
financial statements.

In terms of our report attached of even date
For J.P. Jgshi & Associates

Partner
M. No. 102218
UDIN:- 251022 1BBMIQFMS5024

Place: Nagpur
Date: September 5, 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Vishvaraj Environment Limited
(Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)

Arun Lakhani
Managing Director

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 5, 2025

Fersy

Suresh Agiwal
Director
DIN: 01660403

Amit Sonkusare
Company Secretary
M. No.: F11853




Vishvaraj Environment Limited (Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)

CIN: U74999MH2008PLC186950
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Partitiliis For the year ended March | For the year ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024 (Restated)

Cash flows from operating activities
Restated profit before tax 29,266.94 16,318.04
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 610.80 523.88
Net gain on termination of lease liability (0.58) -
Net gain on financial asset measured at amortised cost (0.01) -
Interest income (2,077.16) (1,846.35)
Dividend income (3,800.00) (3,800.14)
Finance costs 794,53 590.06
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (0.25) 1.79
Expected credit loss - 492.37
Operating profit before working capital changes 24,794.27 12,279.65
Movements in working capital: (8,363.68) 13,277.90
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories 3,124.38 (3,355.62)
{Increase) in trade receivables (41,187.31) (11,839.01)
(Increase) in financial and other assets (8,425.43) (85.99)
Increase in trade and other payables 32,310.79 26,973.70
Increase in provisions 650.62 926.48
increase in financial and other liabilities 5,163.27 658.34
Cash generated from operations 16,430.59 25,557.55
Income taxes paid (4,822.07) (3,370.78)
Net cash inflow from operating activities (A) 11,608.52 22,186.77
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {700.29) (748.28)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 375.94 8.98
Purchase of intangible assets (19.75) (30.21)
Payment received against sale of subsidiary 1.00 -
Investment in equity shares of subsidiary (406.51) (3.00)
Payment made on acquistion of subsidiary (50.00) -
Dividend received 3,800.00 3,800.14
Loans given to related parties (45,700.49) (1,106.17)
Loans repaid by subsidiaries 394.10 1231
(Investment in) bank deposits (net) {7,874.60) (5,196.44)
Interest received 1,220.27 1,126.36
Net cash (outflow) from investing activities (8) (48,960.33) (2,136.51)
Cash flows from financing activities
Term loan taken from bank 3733 :
Term loan repaid to bank (32.61) (67.42)
Loans taken from related parties 42,590.00 17,550.00
Loans repaid to related parties (7,925.00) (25,540.00)
Payment of dividend on equity shares (3,599.70) (3,599.70)
Payment of dividend on preference shares (197.74) (395 .45)
Repayment of lease obligation {174.00) {174.99)
Finance costs paid (4.72) (637.97)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities (C) 30,693.56 (12,865.53)




Vishvaraj Environment Limited (Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)

CIN: U74999MH2008PLC186950
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (6,658.26) 7,184.73
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8,967.17 1,782.44
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,308.91 8,967.17
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow Statement

Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 14) 2,308.91 8967.17
Balance as per statement of cash flows 2,308.91 8,967.17

Refer note 18.3 for reconciliation of changes in liabilities arising from fi

nancing activities.

The accompanying material accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Note: The above Statement of Cash flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out

"Statement of Cash Flows".

In terms of our report attached of even date
For J.P. Joshi & Associates

CA J.P. Joshi

Partner

M. No, 102218

UDIN:- 25102218BMIQFMS5024

Place: Nagpur
Date: September 5, 2025

in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS - 7)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Vishvaraj Environment Limited
(Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private

Limited)
Frermep—

Suresh Agiwal
Director
DIN: 01660403

c Calctouu
Arun Lakhani
Managing Director

100294583

Girish Nadkarni
Chief Financial Officer

Amit Sonkusare
Company Secretary
M. No.: F11853
Place: Mumbai

Date: September 5, 2025




Vishvara] Environment Limited (Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)

CIN:

U74999MH2008PLC1B6950

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are % in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

A)

i

Equity share capital
142,000,000 Equity shares of 2 5 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

For the year ended March 31, 2025

Balance as at April 1, 2024 (Restated)

Changes in equity
share capital due to

Restated balance at

Changes in equity
share capital during

Balance as at March

rior period errors Apri:120is the period oA

7,100.00 - 7,100.00 7.100.00
71,000,000 Equity shares of ® 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Changes in equi Changes in equi
Balance as at April 1, 2023 (Restated) shar::apitaf:uetro Restetad btance a; share gapltﬂ :ur:g PR sl
! at April 1, 2023 31, 2024 (Restated)
rior peri mors the period

7,100.00 - 7.100.00 7,100.00

Other equity
Eqiity :ompnnf B N ) Remeasurement of
Particulars ofc Retained g Securities premium Total
defined benefit plan
financial instruments

Balance as at April 1, 2023 (Restated) 2,131.34 22,435.13 4,261.53 (3.14) 28,824.86
Profit for the year - 13,014.49 - - 13,014.99
Remeasurement of net defined benefit hability (net of tax) (2 46) (2.46)
Total Comprehensive income for the year (Restated) - 13,014.49 (2.46) 13,012.03
Less: Dividend on preference shares - (197.73) - (1972.73)
Less: Dividend on equity shares - 13,599 70) % (3,599.70)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (Restated) 2,131.34 31,652.19 4,261.53 (5.60) 38,039.46
Prafit for the year - 32,120.55 - - 32,120.55
Remeasurement of net defined benefit lability {net of tax) - {5.95) (5.95}
Total comprehensive income for the year - 32,120.55 {5.95) 312,114.60
Less Dividend on preference shares - (192 73) - {197.73)
Less. Dwidend on equity shares - (3,599.70) - {S.SQHQL
Balance as at March 31, 2025 2,131.34 59,975.31 4,261.53 (11.55) 66,356.63

The accompanying material accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached of éven date
For LP. Joshy B A

CAJLP. Joshi W\,
Partner

M No, 102218

UDIN - 251022 18BMICIFMS0 24

Place: Nagpur
Date September 5, 2025

For and on behall of Board of Directors of

Vishvaraj Environment

Limited

(Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)

(aucoaecu

Arun Lakhani
Managing Direglor
DIN: DD2945

ish Nadkarni
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbiai

Date: September 5, 2025

Feony

Suresh Agiwal

Director

DIN 01660403
’

Company Secretary
M, Ne.: F11853




Vishvaraj Environment Limited (Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)
CIN: U74999MH2008PLC186950

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

All amounts are X in lakhs unless otherwise stated

1. Corporate Information

Vishvaraj Environment Limited (Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited) was incorporated
under the Companies Act, 1956 on September 22, 2008, vide CIN number U74999MH2008PLC186950. The
name of the Company was changed from Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited to Vishvaraj Environment
Limited vide ROC approval date June 05, 2025. The company is incorporated with the objective to take up,
promote, projects in India or abroad to purify water, to make the water pollution free and reusable by using
all types of systems, products, units, products plants for pollution control used in all fields as a proprietor,
owner, agent, broker, consultant, know how provider, franchiser and also to run, manage, control, operate
sewage treatment plants, sewage reclamation plants, effluent recycling plants, chemical and radioactive
waste incinerators, odor control systems and other similar systems or products and relating to sanitation,
health and hygiene services, waste disposal and/or management, and related infrastructure projects.
Further, Company entered into Renewable Energy projects, encompassing but not limited to Solar Energy,
Wind Energy, Green Hydrogen, Compressed Biogas, Battery Energy Storage, and Pumped Hydro on
Engineering, Procurement, and Construction (EPC), Public-Private Partnership (PPP), Design-Build-Finance-
Operate-Transfer (DBFOT), Build-Own-Operate-Transfer (BOQT), and Build-Own-Operate (BOO) models and
development, construction, Installation, establishment, operation and maintenance of Renewable Energy
generation plants and in this regard to promote, develop, own, acquire, set up, erect, build, install,
commission, construct, establish, maintain, improve, manage, operate alter, control, take on hire / lease,
carry out and run all necessary Plants, equipment's, sub-stations, workshops, generators, transmission
facilities, machinery, electrical equipment, accumulators, repair shops, wires, cables, lamps, fittings and
apparatus in the capacity of principals, contractors, developers or otherwise and to deal, buy, sell and hire /
lease all apparatus and things required for or used in connection with generation, distribution, supply,
accumulation of Renewable Energy.

The Company has one project outside India, details of which are as follows:

M/s Vishvaraj Environment Limited has one branch in Maldives which was re-registered in Republic of
Maldives on June 10, 2021 under Companies Act, No. 07 of 2023, with the object of design, build for
construction of water and sewerage facilities in Ha. Kella, Ha. Baarah, Hdh. Vaikaradhoo, Sh. Funadhoo, Sh.
Lhaimagu and N. Manadhoo. The Maldives branch is an extended operation of Vishvaraj Environment
Limited and is not a separately incorporated entity.

The books of accounts for the Maldives branch are maintained in US Dollars and the same are audited by
local auditor for the period January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024. As on March 31, 2025, management has
applied the closing exchange rate for converting the monetary assets and liabilities and the average monthly
exchange rate for items of income and expenses.




Vishvaraj Environment Limited (Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)
CIN: U74999MH2008PLC186950

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

All amounts are X in lakhs unless otherwise stated

2. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India.

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also the Company’s functional currency,
and all amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs,
unless otherwise stated.

The standalone financial statements of M/s Vishvaraj Environment Limited and it’s joint operations (together
referred to as “the Company”) for the year ended March 31, 2025 have been approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company on May, 2025.

Basis of Accounting

The Company maintains its accounts on accrual basis following historical cost convention, except for certain
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in accordance with Ind AS.

The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going
concern.

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised prospectively in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

* Determination of useful lives of property, plant and equipment
* Impairment test of non-financial assets

* Recognition of deferred tax assets

* Recognition and measurement of provisions and conti ngencies
*  Fair value of financial instruments

* Impairment of financial assets

* Measurement of defined benefit obligations

s Revenue recognition

* Determination of incremental borrowing rate for leases

¢ Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables




Vishvaraj Environment Limited (Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)
CIN: U74999MH2008PLC186950

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are X in lakhs unless otherwise stated

Interest in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. When the Company undertakes
its activities under joint operations, the Company as a joint operator recognizes in relation to its interest in
a joint operation:

* itsassets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

¢ itsliabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;

* itsrevenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation;
* its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation: and

* itsexpenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

The Company accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses relating to its interest in a joint
operationin accordance with the Ind ASs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses.
These have been incorporated in the financial statements under the appropriate headings.

3. Material Accounting Policies
(a) Current versus non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule 11l to the Companies Act 2013. Terms of a liability
that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments
do not affect its classification.

Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve
months for the purpose of current / non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. Advance tax paid is
classified as non-current assets.

(b) Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts
and other incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer or on account of cha nge in
law. Revenue also excludes taxes or other amounts collected from customers in its capacity as an agent.




Vishvaraj Environment Limited (Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)
CIN: U74999MH2008PLC186950

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

All amounts are X in lakhs unless otherwise stated

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount or consideration payable to the customer,
the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods/services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

Construction Service

Construction contracts generally involve design, supply, construction, installation and commissioning of
water treatment facilities. Revenue from construction services is recognized over time, as control of
goods and services is progressively transferred to the customer over the duration of the contract. The
Company satisfies its performance obligation upon completing the scope of the construction contract
and achieving customer acceptance.

Construction revenue and construction costs in respect of construction service, execution of which is
spread over different accounting periods is recognized as revenue and expense respectively by using
percentage of completion method at the reporting date. The percentage of completion is measured by
reference to the contract costs incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a percentage of total
estimated costs for each contract. Only costs that reflect work performed are included in cost incurred
to date.

Operation and maintenance:

Operation and maintenance contracts involve operation and maintenance services for water treatment
facilities. Revenue from operation and maintenance contracts are recognized as the services are
provided and invoiced to the custome r, as per the terms of the contract.

Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue is recognized when the control of the same is transferred to the customer and it is probable
that the Company will collect the consideration to which it is entitled for the exchanged goods.
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at a point in time based on an assessment of the transfer of
control as per the terms of the contract.

Contract assets

Contract assets are rights to consideration in exchange for goods or services that the entity has
transferred to a customer when that right is conditional on something other than the passage of time.
Contract assets are assessed for impairment under the requirements in the financial instrument’s
standard.




Vishvaraj Environment Limited (Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)
CIN: U74999MH2008PLC186950

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

Allamounts are X in lakhs unless otherwise stated

(c)

If the Company performs its obligation by transferring goods or services to a customer before the
Customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of
invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is
required, as per contractual terms.

Contract liability

Advance from customer represents a contract liability which is the obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (oran amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

Taxes

i) Current Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. Current income taxes are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items
recognized outside profit and loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with re spect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

ii) Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable tempaorary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that the entity has sufficient taxable
temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.




Vishvaraj Environment Limited (Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)
CIN: U74999MH2008PLC186950

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

All amounts are X in lakhs unless otherwise stated

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit and loss is recognized outside profit and
loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment, including freehold land, are initially recorded at cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment other than freehold land are measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land has an
unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated. The cost of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes
(other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable
expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs for
qualifying assets and any expected costs of decommissioning.

The Company provides depreciation on Straight line basis (SLM) basis on all assets over useful life
estimated by the management. The Company has used the following useful life to provide depreciation
on its property, plant and equipment.

' Category of property, plant and equipment | """  Useful life
Building ' ‘ 30 Years
Plant and equipment 15 Years
Electrical installations . . 10 Years ]
Computer _ _ 3 Years
_Furnitlire and fixtures - . lovears e
l_\fga_hia%es | 10 Years ’

Temporary structures are depreciated fully in the year in which they are capitalised.
Cost of equipment purchased for specific clients is depreciated over the useful lives or the contract
period, whichever is shorter.




Vishvaraj Environment Limited (Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)
CIN: U74999MH2008PLC186950

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

All amounts are X in lakhs unless otherwise stated

(e)

(f)

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. The carrying values of
property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable,

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future econamic
benefits are expected to arise from the contin ued use of the assets.

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the end of the reporting period, is shown as ca pital work
in progress. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The Company has
used the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its intangible assets.

Ftegow of intanéible assets _' _j Useful life “

Software ) l 3 Years

The residual values, useful lives and methods of amortization of intangible asset are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. The carrying values of intangible asset are
reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the ca rrying value may
not be recoverable.

An item of intangible asset is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the assets.

Expenditure on intangible assets eligible for capitalization are carried as intangible assets under
development where such assets are not yet ready for their intended use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as
part of the cost of the asset, until such time as the asset is substantially ready for its intended use or
sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.




Vishvaraj Environment Limited (Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)
CIN: U74999MH2008PLC186950

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

All amounts are X in lakhs unless otherwise stated

(8)

(h)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost comprises direct materials and,
where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling
price less all estimated costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Leases

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representi ng the right to use the underlying assets.

Right of use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-

use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Category of lease Useful Iife_-
Premises 3-5 years

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasona bly certain
to be exercised by the Compa ny and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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(i)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental bo rrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g.,

changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are
considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the
obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a
finance cost.

Contingent liabilities exist when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company, or a present obligation that arises from past events
where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount cannot be
reliably estimated. Contingent liabilities are appropriately disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Management performs impairment assessment at the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) level annually or
whenever there are changes in circumstances or events indicate that, the carrying value of the property,
plant and equipment may have suffered an impairment loss.

When indicators of impairment exist, the recoverable amount of each CGU is determined based on
value-in-use computations. The key assumptions in the value-in-use computations are the plant load
factor, projected revenue growth, EBITDA margins, and the discount rate.
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(k) Foreign currency

(n

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional
currency.

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the fu nctional currency, by applying to the exchange rate
between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted to functional
currency using the closing rate. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are
carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at
rates different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the restated
consolidated statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefits in the form of a defined contribution scheme (Provident Funds) are provided to the
employees. The contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when the

contributions are due. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to such
defined contribution scheme.

The Company operates only one defined benefit plan for its employees, referred to as the Gratuity plan.

The costs of providing this benefit are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year end.

The actuarial valuation is carried out using the projected unit credit method. Re-measurements,

comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a

corresponding debit or credit through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.

Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the defined benefit liability. The Company

recognizes the following changes in the defined benefit obligation under ‘employee benefit expense’ in

profit and loss:

* Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments
and non-routine settlements; and

e Netinterest expense or income

Short term benefits

Salaries, wages, and other short-term benefits, accruing to employees are recognised at undiscounted
amounts in the period in which the employee renders the related service.
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(m) Financial instruments

ii)

Investment in subsidiaries
The Company has accounted for its investments in subsidiaries at cost.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition

With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component,
the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component are measured at the transaction price determined
under Ind AS 115.

In case of loans given to fellow subsidia ries / subsidiaries, the difference between the tra nsaction
value and the fair value is recorded as a deemed distribution to parent / deemed investment in
subsidiary respectively.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at amortised cost

A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

* The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account

any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The

EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. Gains/losses arising from

modification of contractual terms are included in profit or loss as a separate line item.

Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
A financial asset is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
* The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and
* Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI Category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI) and on derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is
reclassified to restated consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. For equity instruments, the
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iii)

Company may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value in
OCl. If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling
of the amounts from OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets which are not measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI and are held for trading
are measured at FVTPL. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value, including interest income, recognized
in the restated consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its enti rety, the difference between the carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received is recognised in profit and loss. In case of early
repayment of loans by fellow subsidiaries / subsidia ries, this difference is recorded as a deemed
contribution from parent / reduction from deemed investment respectively.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset is impaired. The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral
held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is recognised for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus in the case of financial liabilities
not at fair value through profit and loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

In case of borrowings from subsidiaries, the difference between the transaction value and the
fair value is recorded as a deemed distribution from subsidiary.
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vi)

vii)

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value
with net changes in fair value, including interest expense, recognised in the statement of profit
and loss,

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation, is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss. Gains/ losses arising from modification of contractual
terms are included in profit or loss as a separate line item.

Derecognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. On de-recognition of a financial liability in its entirety, the difference
between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration paid is recognised in profit and
loss.

Embedded derivatives

The Company generally separates the derivatives embedded in host contracts which are not
financial assets within the scope of Ind AS 109, when their risks and characteristics are not
closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract is not measured at FVTPL.
Separated embedded derivatives are measured at FVTPL,

Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments are separated into liability and equity components based on
the terms of the contract. On issuance, the fair value of the liability component is determined
using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is classified as a
financial liability measured at amortised cost until it jis extinguished on conversion or
redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is

recognized and included in equity since conversion option meets Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed-to-
fixed classification.

Equity instruments
Based on the terms of the instruments, certain convertible financial instruments issued are
classified as instruments entirely equity in nature.
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(n)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Fair value measurement

The fair value of an asset or a lability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would

use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorized within the fair value hiera rchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

* level1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

* Llevel 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

Dividend

The Company recognizes a liability for any dividend declared but not distributed at the end of the
reporting year, when the distribution is authorized, and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of
the Company on or before the end of the reporting year.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of
parent company (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders of the parent company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

In case of mandatorily convertible instruments, the ordinary shares issuable upon conversion are
included in the calculation of basic earnings per share from the date the contract is entered into.
Convertible instruments classified as financial liabilities are included in the calculation of diluted earnings
per share.

Restatement of prior year financial statements
During the current year, management conducted a detailed review of transactions spanning multiple

reporting periods and identified certain items requiring correction. These adjustments primarily related
to areas such as financial instruments and deferred taxes.
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(r)

In order to present the most accurate and reliable financial information, each adjustment was evaluated
to determine whether it pertained to prior periods or resulted from new information obtained during
the current year. Based on this assessment, the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024,
along with the opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2023, have been restated to incorporate these
corrections.

Given the nature and scope of the restatements, the adjustments have been classified according to their
underlying accounting areas.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On August 12, 2024
and September 09, 2024, MCA issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standa rds) Amendment Rules,
2024 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024 introducing
following changes:

Ind AS 117 — Insurance Contracts
Ind AS 117: Insurance Contracts was introd uced and Ind AS 104: Insurance Cont racts was withdrawn.
This was accompanied with consequent amendments in other standards.

Ind AS 116 - Leases
The amendments clarify accounting treatment for a seller-lessee involved in sale and leaseback
transactions and introduced some related illustrative examples.

The above amendments are not expected to have a significant impact on the financial statements of the
Company.
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4 Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Land Building Plant and Electrical Computer Furniture Vehicles Total
quip t | Installati and Fixture
I. Gross carrying amount
Balance as at April 1, 2023 (Restated) 331.30 101.38 373.45 237 200.57 298.56 75.99 1,405.02
Additions 4.70 101 86 357.39 24 58 160 26 60.15 319.34 748.28
Disposals, transfers and adjustments - - {0.56) - - - (11.66) {12.22)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (Restated) 336.00 203.24 730.28 48.35 360.83 358.71 103.67 2,141.08
Additions 37.91 64 30 202.26 ZB.BO 182.45 64.45 120.12 700.29
Disposals, transfers and adjustments* (373.91) - (1.19) - {2.27) (0.17) - (377.54)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 = 267.54 931.35 77.15 541.01 422.99 223.79 2,463.83
. Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2023 [Restated) - 3.73 27.55 1.85 58.55 6.71 12.56 110.95
Depreciation expense for the year - 49.65 46.97 373 86.89 49.55 11.97 248.76
Disposals, transfers and adjustments = - {0.01) - - - (1.44) {1.45)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (Restated) - 53.38 74.51 5.58 145.44 56.26 23.09 358.26
Depreciation expense for the year 76.95 64.00 5.95 114 04 54.72 21.25 336.91
Disposals, transfers and adjustments - {0.34) - (1.51) - = (1.85)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 n 130.33 138.17 11.53 257.97 110.98 44.34 693.32
ll. Net carrying amount {I-1l)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 - 13r.21 793.18 65.62 283.04 312.01 179.45 1,770.51
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (Restated) 336.00 149.86 655.77 42.77 215.39 302.45 80.58 1,782.82

* Company has transferred the leasehold land to Vishvaraj Steel Private Limited ("

4.1 There are no impairment losses recognised during the current years and previous years,

4.2 The Company has not revalued its property,
not applicable

4.3 The title deeds of all immavable properties (other than properties where the com,
under Property, Plant and Equipment in the financial statements, are

VSPL") at cost, vide Maharashtra Industrial

Development Corparation order dated 4th June 2024

plant and equipment as on each reporting period and therefore Schedule 11l disclosure requirements with respect to fair value details is

pany is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), grouped
held in the name of the company as at the balance sheet date
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Environment Private Limited)

5 Right-of-use assets

5.1

Particulars Premises

l. Gross carrying amount

Balance as at April 1, 2023 (Restated) 607.70
Additions 64.78
Disposals, transfers and adjustments .
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (Restated) 672.48
Additions 62.62
Disposals, transfers and adjustments (31.91)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 703.19
Il. Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at April 1, 2023 (Restated) 135.36
Depreciation expense for the year (Refer note 5.4) 155.57
Eliminated on disposal -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (Restated) 290.93
Depreciation expense for the year (Refer note 5.4) 152.15
Eliminated on disposal (25.23)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 417.85
ll. Net carrying amount (I-11)

As at March 31, 2025 285.34
As at March 31, 2024 (Restated) 381.55
Details of lease liabilities

Particulars Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2023 (Restated) 503.05
Recognised during the year 63.88
Finance cost accrued during the year (Refer note 5.4) 31.71
Derecognised during the year -
Payment of lease liabilities (174.99)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (Restated) 423.65
Recognised during the year 61.63
Finance cost accrued during the year {(Refer note 5.4) 26.60
Derecognised during the year (7.15)
Payment of lease liabilities (174.00)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 330.73

5.2 Classification of lease liabilities
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
{Restated)
Non-current 188.00 275.39
Current 142.73 148.26
Total 330.73 423.65
5.3 The Company has taken premises on lease for a lease term of 3-5 years (as at March 31, 2024: 3.5 years, as at March 31,

2023: 3-5 years).

5.4 Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

(Restated)
- Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets 152.15 155.57
- Interest expenses on lease liability 26.60 31.71
- Expenses related to short term leases (Refer note 31) 349.25 259.40

5.5 The total cash outflows for leases amounts to % 523.25 lakhs (March 31, 2024:
short term and long term leases).

5.6 The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is presented in note 38.5.

% 434.39 lakhs) (includes cash out

\7

N\
N
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6 Intangible assets

Particulars Software

l. Gross carrying amount

Balance as at April 1, 2023 358.98
Additions 30.21
Disposals, transfers and adjustments =
Balance as at March 31, 2024 389.19
Additions 19.75
Disposals, transfers and adjustments -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 408.94

Il. Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at April 1, 2023 50.89
Amortisation expense for the year 119.55
Disposals, transfers and adjustments -

Balance as at March 31, 2024 170.44
Amortisation expense for the year 121.74
Disposals, transfers and adjustments -

Balance as at March 31, 2025 ¢ 292.18

Ill. Net carrying amount (I-11)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 116.77
Balance as at March 31, 2024 218.75

6.1 The Company has not revalued its intangible assets and therefore Schedule |11 disclosure requirements with
respect to fair value details is not applicable.




vishwaraj Environment Limited {Formesly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)
CIN: U74359MH2008PLC186950

Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2025

Al amounts are % in Lakhs uniess otherwise stated

7 _Investments
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 [Restated) |
Mo.ofshares |  Amount | | No.ofshares | Amount
Non-current
A. Unauoted investments
I- Investments at cost / deemed cost
I in equity | uments of sub
Equity Shares of INR 10/- each fully paid up in Nagpur Waste Water Management Private Limited (NWWMPL) 00,000 B0 00 900,000 30,00
Eauity Shares of INR 10/ each fully pajd up i VEPL MSPL Sinatt Water Private Lirnited (VEPL MSPL) 1,400 0.74 7.400 0.1
Equity Shares of INK 10/ each fully paid up in Vedle West Water Management Private Limited (VEDIC) 5,100 4891 5100 4841
Equity Shares of INR 10/ each fully paid up in Maheshiala Waste Water Managernent Private Limited (MWWhPL)
999,999 10000 999,999 100 00
Eauity Shares of INR 10/ each fully paid up in ARra Waste Water Management Private Limited [AWWMIPL| 740,000 7400 140,000 #4.00
Equity Shares of INR 10/ each fully pald up in Vishvara) Waste Water Management Private Limited (YWWPL)
5,000 66330 5,000 B9 30
Equity Shares of INR 10/ each fully paid up in Chandrapur Waste Water Management Pyt Litd [CWWMPL) 11,294 000 1,12950 11,495,000 1,12950
Equity Shares of INR 10/ each fuily paid ug in Vishvaral Foundation (VF) 9,999 1.00 9,999 100
tauity Shares ol INR 10/ each fully paid up in Vishvarai Steel Private Limited (V59 ) 5.995 1.00 4,999 1.00
Fauity Shares of INE 10/ sach fully paid up in Vishvarai Environment International Private Limited IVEIPL) 9,999 100
Equity Shares of INR 10/- each tully paid up in Vishvara) Overseas Prvate Limited (VOPL) 9,999 oo
Equity Shares of INF 10/- each fully pard wo in Vishvar al Enviranment AMC Private Limited (Vi AMC PL) 9,999 100
tauity Shares of INR 107 each fully paid up in Vishvarai Renewables Private Lirmited (VRPL} 9,999 1.00
Equity Shares of INE 16/ sach fully paid up in Bhusawal Waste Water Management Private Limited [BWWMPL}
999,999 100U
Equity Shares of INK 10/ vach fully paid up in Koradi Waste Water Management Private Limited IRWWMPL) 9,999 100
Equity Shares of INR 10/ each fully paid up in Paras Waste Water Management Private Limited {PWWMPL) 9,909 100
Eauity Shares of INR 10/ each fully paid vo in Vishvarai Solapur Solar Energy Private |imited IVSSERL) 510,000 51.00
Eawity Shares of INR 10/ each fully paid up in Vishvara) Vidarbha Salar Enerey Private Limited (VSE PLY 510,000 5100
Equity Shares ol INR 10/ each fully pavd up in Dhanbad Waste Water Maragement Private Limited (TWWAPL)
199,599 100.00
Equity Shares of INR 10/ each fully paid up in MSKVY Fitteen Sular 5PV Private Limited (MSKVY) 99,000 145 00
Eouity Shares of INR 10/- each fully paid up in Vishvarai Maharashtra Salar Energy Frivate Limited (VMSERL] 5,100 .51 =
2,570.96 2,115.45
in Pred e Shares of subsidiary
Vishvaraj Waste Water Management Private Limited (VWWM PL) 7,000,000 70000 1,000,000 Jo0 po
700.00 700.00
i, i in subsid
Beemed investment in Nagpur Waste Water Management Private Limited [NWWMPL) 18,571 B3 2,25392
Deemed tment in Chandrapur Waste Water m, Private Limited (CWWMPL) 67561 bla 6l
Deemed investment in Maheshtala Waste Water Management Private Limited (MWWMEL) 578 b4 578 64
Deemed investment in Agra Waste Water Management Private Limited (AWWMPL) 18821 1,288.21
Deemed investment in Dhanbad Waste Water Management Private Limited (DWW 157643
Deemed investment in Bhusawal Waste Water Management Private Limited {BWWMPL) 12,161.60
Deemed investment in Vishvara; Vidarbha Solas Energy Private Limited (VWSEPL) 1,385.34
Dermed investment in Vishvara) Solapur Solar Energy Private Limited {VSSEPL) 1377243
Deemed investmant in MSKVY Fifteenth Salar SPV Limited (hasky) 1.187.00
Deemed investment in Korads Waste Water Management Private Limited (KWWMP| ) E 12598
Deemed investment in Vishvaraj Renswabiles Private Limited [(VRPL) 2734 6B
53,656.64 16,796.38
. at fair value through profit & loss
in equity i of Co-Op Banks
Abhyudaya Co-Op Bank Limited 145 500 1495 148 500 1499
Nagpur Nagrik Sabkar Bank [imited 5,000 250 5,000 250
Babaji Date Mabila Sahakar: Bank Limited 30,060 752 30,060 752
25.m 25.01
Total non-current investments 56,952.61
s
7.1_Aggregate amount of investments and market value thereof:
s As at March 31, Asar a3l
2025 1024
jngﬂilcd]
Aggregate carrying value of unguoted investments 56,952 61 19.636.84
Aggregate amount of market value of unguoted investments .
Aggregate carrying value of quoted investments
Aggregate amount of market value of quated investments
Aggregate amount of impairment in vatue of investments
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8 Inventories

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
(Restated) |
At lower of cost or net realisable value
Stock at site 4,050.64 B.506.16
Work-in-progress 1,381.15% 50.01
Total 5,431.79 8,556.17

8.1 Stock at site includes goods in transit as at March 31, 2025: Nil (March 31, 2024 8.40 lakhs)

8.2 The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year was ® 46,149.83 lakhs

net realisable value as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

{March 31, 2024: % 43,595.81 lakhs). The Company has no write-down of inventory 1o

9 Loans
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
[Restated) |

Non-current - unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Measured at amortized cost

Loans to related parties [Refer note 9.1a & 37) 15,998 951 7,725.04
Total 15,998.91 7,725.04
Current- unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Measured at amortized cost

Loans to related parties (Refer note 9.1b & 37) 2,106.79 1,152 84
Tatal 2,106.79 1,152.84

9.1 Terms of loan given to related party, measured at amortised cost

a The Company has infused interest free loan into project Subsidiary SPV's as promoter contribution, and forming part of
SPV’s which is repayable on demand, within 20 years. However repayment is restricted unt

with the financial institution loan covenants.

b Interest free unsecured loans given to its subsidiaries are repayable on demand,

10 Other financial assets

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
(Restated)

Non-current - unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Measured at amortized cost

Security deposits 975.67 1,244.95

Bank deposits with remaining maturity for more than 12 months 2,391.13 2,308.13
Total 3,366.80 3,553.08
Current - unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Measured at amortized cost

Bank deposits with remaining maturity upto 12 months 16,187.73 10,378.83

Contract assets {Refer note 24.3) 847 67 214.45

Other receivables® 9.76

Total 17,035.40 10,603.04

* Other receivables represents advances receivable from joint operator.

10.1 Bank deposits amounting to INR 16,709 48 lakhs {March 31, 2024° INR 11,382 16 lakhs) have been marked as lien

against bank puarantee issued by various banks.

the means of funding of the project cost of these project
il the subsidiaries repay the loan taken from the financial mstitution in accordance

Particulars As at March 31, zuzs_ As at March 31, 2024
Total Lien Total Lien
Bank deposits with remaining maturity for more than 12 months [Non-current) s LISTLS s 4,08691
Bank deposits with remaining maturity upto 12 months {Current) 16,187.73 14,967.33 10,378.83 9,345.25
Total 18,578.86 16,709.48 12,686.96 11,382.16




Vishvaraj Environment Limited (Formerly known as Vishvaraj

Private Li

CIN: U74999MH2008PLC186950
Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2025
All amounts are % in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

11

11.1 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to the year ended March 31, 2025
Particulars

Deferred tax asset net)

Opening balance as | Recognised in profit Recognised in other | Recognised directly Closing balance as
on April 1, 2024 of loss | W comprehensi in equity on March 31, 2025
income
Property, plant and equipment {109.89) Bl.34 - {28.55)
Intangible assers 113.66) 1252 {1.14}
Right-to-use assets {96.03) 2421 (71.81)
Leases liahilities 106 62 {23 39) 8124
Trade recewable 140.10 - 5 140.10
Loans 3720007 9,080.26 12,800.33
Other financial assets 246 0.70) - 176
Borrowings (0.00) {0.00) {0.00)
Other financial liabilities {677.50) 15.95 {bE1.55)
Trade payables (0.00) 1.02 - 1.01
Provisions 52595 163.75 2.00 - 691.62
Total 3,598.12 9,354.96 2.00 + 12,955.08
Deferred tax assets/{liabilities) in relation to the year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars Opening balance as | Recognised in profit] Rec d in other | Recognised directly Closing balance as
on April 1, 2023 or loss (exp W compreh In equity on March 31, 2024
(Restated) credit income (Restated)
Property, plant and eguipment {107 67) {2.22) - {109 89)
Intangible assets [16:57) 291 {13.66)
Right-to-use assets (118.88) 22.85 {36 03}
Leases liabilities 126.61 (19.98) 106.62
Trade receivable 16.18 123.92 - 140.10
Loans 389893 (178.86) 3,720.07
Other financial assets 3.15 (0.69) - - 2.46
Other financial kabilities (691.94) 14 44 {677.50)
Trade payables 0os {0.05) - (0.00)
| Provisions 359,43 16569 0.83 525495
Total 3,069.28 128.01 0.83 3,598.12 |
Other assels
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
[Restated)
E-{u«rznl - unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Prepaid expenses 161.3% 161.35
Deposit with regulatory authonties - 15.89
161.35 177.2a4
Current - unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Advances to suppliers & employees 8,810.66 457.08
Balances with government autharities (other than income taxes) 2,290.55 1,446 33
Prepaid expenses 431.01 539.02
Total 11,532.22 344243
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13 Trade receivables

Particulars As at March 31, 2025| As at March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Non-current
Unsecured, considered good (includes retention monies) 5,460.51 4,297.07
Unsecured, credit impaired - -
5,460.51 4,297.07
Less: Expected credit loss allowance - -
Total 5,460.51 4,297.07
Current
Unsecured, considered good 85,628.99 45,605.12
Unsecured, credit impaired 556.64 556.64
86,185.63 46,161.76
Less: Expected credit loss allowance (Refer note 13.3) (556.64) (556.64)
Total 85,628.99 45,605.12

13.1 The credit period agreed with customers include periodic performance based
payments. Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period.

payments and/or milestone based progress

13.2 The Company has used a practical expedient for computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables
based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for

forward-looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on
due and the rates as given in the provision matrix.

13.3 Movement in the expected credit loss allowance

the ageing of

the days the receivables are

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

(Restated)
Balance at beginning of the year 556.64 64.27
Movement in expected credit loss allowance . 492.37
Balance at end of the year 556.64 556.64

13.4 Trade receivables from related parties are disclosed separately under note 37.
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ty known as Vishvaraj €

Private Limited)

13.5 Ageing of receivables

March 31, 2025
Dut ding for foll & periods from due date of invoice
Particulars Not due Less than & & months -1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 Tatal
_months _ygars
Undisputed
- considered pood 79.676.49 192817 2.665.00 580737 1,012.52 91,089.50
- eredit impaired - < . 556,64 556.64
Disputed
- considered pood > % -
- credit impaired = - = - : =
S 79.676.44 192817 2,665.00 5.807.37 156916 91,646.14
Less’ Expected credit loss allowance - - - {556 64) (556 64
Total = 79,676.44 192817 2,665 5,807.37 101252 91 039.52
As on March 31, 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of Invoice
Particulars Not due Less than & & months -1 year 1-2 Years 2-3years Maure than 3 Total
months years ]
Undisputed
- considered good 41,971 50 1,000.00 6,218.50 396.13 316.06 49,902.19
- credit impaired - 556.64 556.64
Disputed
- tonsidered good
- credit impaired - a -
= 41.971.50 1,000.00 6,218.50 952.77 316.06 50,458.83
Less. Expected credit loss allowance + . -+ [556.64) - {556 64] |
Total - 41,9715 1,000.00 6,218. 96.13 316.06 49,902 19
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14 Cash and cash equivalents

14.1

15

15.1

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Balances with banks
- In current accounts* 1,082.45 8,409.42
- Bank deposits with original maturity of less than three months 1,199.57 548.49 |
Cash on hand 26.89 9.26
Total 2,308.91 8,967.17

*Includes amounting to Nil (March 31, 2024: INR 594.83 lakhs)

Bank deposits amounting to INR 140.69 lakhs (

various banks.

related to company's share in joint operations account.

March 31, 2024: Nil) have been marked as lien against bank guarantee issued by

Bank balances other than cash and equivalents

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
(Restated)

Bank deposits with original maturity of more than three months but less than

twelve months 4,589.01 2,534.73

Total 4,589.01 2,534.73

Bank deposits amounting to INR 4,485.84 |akhs (March 31, 2024: INR 2,411.66 lakhs

guarantee issued by various banks.

) have been marked as lien against bank
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All amounts are ® in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

16 Equity share capital

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 (Restated)
Particulars
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

Authorised capital
Equity Shares of % 10/- each - - 100,050,000 10,005.00
Equity Shares of % 5/- each® 530,100,000 26,505.00 - -

530,100,000 26,505.00 100,050,000 10,005.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity Shares of 2 10/- each - - 71,000,000 7,100.00
Equity Shares of 2 5/ each * 142,000,000 7.100.00 - -

142,000,000 7,100.00 71,000,000 7,100.00

16.1 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10/- per share, Each shareholder 15 entitled for one vote per share held The company declares & pays dividend in
Indian rupees. The dividend if proposed by the Board of Ditectors 15 subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In
the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their
shareholding

*The Board at its meeting held on March 28, 2025 approved sub-division of equity shares of the Company with existing face value of % 10 {Ten) per share each fully paid-up into 2 (Two)
each fully paid up shares of face value of %5 (Five) per share, consequential amendment to the Memorandum of Association of the Company

16.2 Authorised share capital
The Authorised share capital of the Company was increased to INR 2,65,05,00,000/- (indian Rupees Twenty Six Thousand Five Hundred and Five Lakhs only) divided into 53,01,00,000 [Five
Thousand Three Hundred and One Lakhs oniy) equity shares of INR 5/- (Indian Rupees Five only) each in the extra-ordinary general meeting of the members held on March 28, 2025

16.3 Reconciliation of the number of equity shares ling at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Particuiars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 [Restated
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
At the beginning of the relevant year 71,000,000 7,100.00 71,000,000 7,100.00
Add: Sub-division of 1 share of face value 10 each into 2 shares 71,000,000 * - -

of face value 25 each effective March 28, 2025 (Increase in

shares on account of sub-division)
At the end of the year 142,000,000 7,100.00 71,000,000 7,100.00

16.4 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Name of shareholder As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 (Restated)
Number of shares held | % halding in that class Number of shares held | % holding in that class
f shar, of shares
Premier Financial Services Private Limited 141,999 998 100.00% 70,971,020 99.96%
Total 141,999,998 100.00% 70,971,020 99.96%
16.5 Details of shareholding of the promoters

Promoter name As at March 31, 2025 % Change during the As at March 31, 2024 (Restated!
Number of shares held | % of total shares year Number of shares held % of total shares

Premier Financial Services Private Limited# 141,999,958 100.00% 0.04% 70,871,020 99 96%

#2 equity share held by Arun Hanumandas Lakhani as nominee shareholder,

16.6 During the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared:
No class of shares were allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being recewed in cash

- No class of shares were bought back by the Company.

- On January 1), 2022, the Company had, via Shareholders' approval, utilised a sum of 2 490.49 millions out of the Company's retained earnings and such amount 1s transferred to the share
capital account and s applied for issue and allotment of 49,049,000 equity shares of face value INR 10/- each {"Equity Shares") of the Company as bonus shares ["Bonus Equity Shares”)
credited as fully paid-up, to the eligible shareholders of the Company, whose names appeared in the Register of Members as on March 17, 2022, in the proportion of 10 1, and that the
Equity Share so issued and allotted are treated for all purposes as an increase of the nominal amount of the equity share capital of the Company and not as an income in liew of dividend
credited

16.7 There are no calls unpaid.

16.8 There are no forfeited shares.
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17 Other equity

Particulars As at March 31, 2025( As at March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Equity component of compound financial instrument 2,131.34 2,131.34
Retained earnings 59,975.31 31,652.19
Securities Premium Account 4,261.53 4,261.53
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan (11.55) (5.60)
Total 66,356.63 38,039.46

17.1 Equity component of compound financial instrument

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Balance at beginning of the year 2,131.34 2,131.34
Balance at end of the year 2,131.34 2,131.34

This covers the equity component of the issued non convertible redeemable
reflected in financial liabilities. Refer rnote 19.

17.2 Retained earnings

preference shares. The liability component is

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Balance at beginning of the year 31,652.19 22,435.13
Add: Profit for the year 32,120.55 13,014.49
Less: Dividend on preference shares (197.73) (197.73)
Less: Dividend on equity shares (3,599.70) (3,599.70})
Balance at end of the year 59,975.31 31,652.19

Retained earnings are the profits/(losses) that the Company has earned/incurred till date less any transfers to General Reserve,
dividends or other distributions to shareholders. Retained earnings is a free reserve available to the Company.

17.3 Securities Premium Account

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Balance at beginning of the year 4,261.53 4,261.53
Balance at end of the year 4,261.53 4,261.53

17.4 Remeasurement of defined benefit plan

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

(Restated)
Balance at beginning of the year (5.60) (3.14)
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (7.95) (3.29)
Income tax on above 2.00 0.83
Balance at end of the year (11.55) (5.60)

Includes re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to the

and loss,

statement of profit
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18 Borrowin
’_[ As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Particulars
Non-Current
Measured at amortised cost
Secured
Term loan from banks {refer note 18 1) iria
Unsecured
Loan from related parties (refer note 18.2) __26,049.61
Total 26,086.94 -
Current
Measured at amortised cost
Secured
Term loan from banks 5.58 38.1%
Unsecured
Loan trom related parties (reter note 18.2) 924523
Total 9,250.81 3819

18.1 Term Loan from Banks
Term Loan from Punjab National Bank - Vehicle Loans
a The Company has taken Vehicle loan from Punjab National Bank of ks 47 64 Lakhs tor the purchase of Toyota Legender i April 2029 which is repayabile in B equated
manthly installments of R<.0.76 Lakhs The interest rate as of 31st March 2025 s B.20%, composed of the repo eate (650%), mark up (2 5], business strategic
premium (0.25%), and a spread adjustment | 0.45%)

Term Loan from HOFC Bank - Vehicle Loans

a The Company has taken Vehicle loans from HOFC Bank of fis 23,195 Lakhs for the purchase of Innova Crysta & Hs 14 845 Laklhs for the purchase of Mahindra Marazeo in
lume 2019 which are tepayable in 60 equated monthly installments of Rs 0,31 Lakhs and 0.48 Lakhs respectively Interest cate is 9.75% pa The loan was fully repaid
during the year ending March 2024

b The Company has taken Vehicle loan from HOFC Bank of Hs 997 Lakhs for the purchase of Toyota Urban Cruiser in Feb 2022 which 1 repayable 60 equated manthiy
installments of Rs 0 20 Lakhs.Interest rate 1s 7 50% p.a It was foreciosed by the company on 3rd May 2021

Term Loan from Axis Bank - Equipment Loans
a The Company has taken the loan from Axis Bank of Rs 151 59 Lakhs for purchase of Canstruction Equipments in Octaber 2021 which s repayable in 37 equatad monthly
installments. Interest rate s B.50% p.a The loan was fully repaid during the year ending March 2024

18.2 Terms of loan from related parties
Unsecured loan taken from Premier Financial Services Private Limited ["PESLY) {parent company) at agreed terms and conditions Blven below:
Particulars of Lenders Sanction Amount

Loan taken fof business purpose in FY J022-23 carries interest rate
Prermer Financial Secvices Pyt Ld 10000 00 @49 0% p.a. repayable in twenty -four months andfor such earlier
date by which company repays all amounts payable

Loan taken for business purpose in Sept 024 carries interest rate

Premier Financual Services Put Lid H780.00 E@9.00% p.a repayable in twenty four months and/or such eailier
by which company repays all amounts payabile
; : i ¥ i - Loan taken for "Solar Project” in FY 2024-25 carries interest rate
Premier bmancial Services Pyt (1 0000 @11.65% repayable in 6 years
Loan taken for "Waste Waler Project” in FY 2024.25 cares imterost
|Fremier Financial Services Pt L1d 16000 00 e il

tate @10 50% repayable in 6 years

18.3 Changes In liabilities arising from financing activities
The table below details change in the Company's liabilities arising from hinancing activities, including both cash and non cash changes

[Panticuiars Asataprilon 20| New feases As at March 31,
{Restated) Financing ca: ows Bccruals recognised (net] (i) 2025
Term loan from banks 3819 4.72 - 4291
Loan from related parties 0.00 14,665 00 629 B4 = 1% 794 84
Pref o shares 603.63 6338 - G67.01
Lease habwlities 42365 1174 00} 26.60 54 48 33072
Dividend payabile 1897 78 3,797 a4} 3,797 44 197 74
Total liabilities from financing activities 1,263.21 30,691.56 452198 54,48 36,533.23
Particulars As at April 01, 2023{ ) » News leases As at March 31,
(Restated) Financing cash flows Accruals recognised 2024
{Restated)
Term inan from banks 10561 (73 01) 5.59 - IR 19
Loan fram refated partes B,176 94 (8,622 38) 495 an - 0on
Preference shares 546,27 - 5736 - 603 63
Lease habilities Si12 0% [174 99) an ERLS 42365
Onidend pavahle 39545 13,995 15} 3,797.44 157 74
Total Habilities from financing activities 9,677.36 11286553 4,387.50 63.88 1,263.21

} Includes lease derecognised during the current year of ® 7 15 lakhs on arcount of early termination of leaye

19 Other financial liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
[Restated)
14 F
Non-current Y[ Al S B
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: \ ]
Liability component of Non cumulative, Nan convertible redesmable &7 61 0363 \Cs \ / =
Preference Shares (INCEPS) (Refer note 19 7) - g
667.01 603 63 T
Current
Fi ial habilities at ised cost:
Dwidend payable 197.73 197.73
Total 197.73 197.73
e =2

19.1 Details of fair value of the labilities is disclosed in note 39,

19.2 Terms of Non cumulative, Non convertible Non participating redeemable Preference Shares [NCRPS) issued to all the equity shareholders of Vishvaraj
Infrastructure Limited pursuant to scheme of d ger, classified as P financial i with liability component measured at amortised cost

132955521 tully pad 6% Non cumulative, Non convertible Non participating redeemable Preference Shares (NT APS) 1ssued by the Company have 4 face value &f INR
10/- each ssued/alloted on 31 March 2021

2. NCAPS 1 redeemable after expiry of 20 years from the date of aliotment, Company has the option 1o redeem it at any ume after 3 years fram date of ssue

3 NCRPS shall carry @ non-cumulative coupon of 6% p.a payable annually at the aption of the company

4. NCRPS shall be unsecured
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20 Provisions

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
(Restated)

Non-current
Provision for employee benefits

- Gratuity (refer note 36) 277.27 197.33
Provision for major repairs obligation (refer note 20.1) 2,433.69 1,850.24
Total 2,710.96 2,047.57
Current
Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (refer note 36) 37.35 42.17

Total 37.35 42.17

20.1 Provision for major repairs obligation

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,850,24 1,255.46
Provided/(Reversed) during the year 1,606.00 1,213.33
{Utilised) during the year {1,022.55) (618.55)
Total 2,433.69 1,850.24

A provision is recognised for major repairs relating to infrastructure facilities constructed and operated by the Company under long-term
concession arrangements. The obligation arises as per the terms of the arrangement, requiring the Company to undertake major repairs during

Operation & Maintenance phases. The provision is based on the best estimate of costs,

schedules and is approved by managemnet of the company.

21 Trade payables

technical evaluations, and expected maintenance

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
(Restated)

Non-current

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises

(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro and small enterprises 3,145.86 1,859,02
Total 3,145.86 1,859.02
Current

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 3,080.71 1,332.16

(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 76,886.21 47,610.91
Total 79,966.92 48,943.07

21.1 The average credit period on purchases is 30-45 days.

21.2 For explanations on the Campany's liquidity risk management processes refer note 38.

21.3 Trade payables from related parties are disclosed separately under note 37.

21.4 Disclosures as required under section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act):
The amounts due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the ‘The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" has been

determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Com

the auditors.

pany. This has been relied upon by

unpaid as at year end

year end
(€] Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the
appointed day during the year

(b} Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
(Restated)
(a) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining 3,080.71 1,332.16

(d) Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under
the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the vear
(e) Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED
Act, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during the vear
{f) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments
already made

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier periods
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21.5 Ageing of trade payables

As on March 31, 2025

Particulars Kodrcals o [&] ding for following periods from due date of invoice Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Undisputed dues
- MSME o 3,080.71 - d L 3,080.71
- Dthers 75,796.57 2.934.85 150.52 150.13 B0,032.07
Disputed dues
- MSME d + = +
- Others = - - = -
Total = = 79,877.28 2,934.85 150.52 150.13 83,112.78
As on March 31, 2024
Particulars Aechusts Not due 0 ing for following periods from due date of invoice Teital
Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Undisputed dues
- MSME 2 = 1,332.16 s > > 1.332.16
- Others - 48 818 58 236,44 322.02 92,89 49,469.93
Disputed dues
- MSME = =
- Others C = -
Total 2 - 50,150.74 236.44 312.02 92.89 50,802 .09
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22 Other liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
(Restated)

Non-current

Mabilization advances 15,573.13 17,710.52
Total 15,573.13 17,710.52
Current

Statutory remittances 12,557.44 5,186.80
Total 12,557.44 5,186.80

23 Current tax liabilities (net)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
{Restated)

Income tax payable {net of advance tax and tax deducted at source as at March 31, 2025 2

4,815.03 lakhs; as at March 31, 2024:  3,391.36 lakhs) 1,719.48 40.20

Total 1,719.48 40.20

24 Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Income from construction services 123,093.01 95,444.67
Income from operation and maintainance services 12,232.48 10,043.55
Trading Sales 5,179.39 366.05
Total 140,504.88 105,854.27

24.1 The Company presently recognises its revenue from contract with customers for construction and operation & maintenance services over a

period of time and trading sales are recorded at a point in time.

External revenue by timing of revenue For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Goods transferred at a point in time 5,179.39 366.05
Goods transferred over a period of time 135,325.49 105,488.22
Total 140,504.88 105,854.27

24.2 Contract balances

The following table provides information about receivables, contract asset and contract liability from contract with customers.

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
(Restated)

Contract asset

Current 847.67 214,45

Total (A) 847.67 214.45

Receivables

Trade receivable - Non Current 5,460.51 4,297.07

Trade receivable - Current 85,628.99 45,605.12

Total (B) 91,089.50 49,502.19

Contract liability

Mobilisation advance - Non current 15,573.13 17,710.52

Total (C) 15,573.13 17,710.52

Net Total (A+B-C) 76,364.04 32,406.12

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract liability is the company's
obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the company has received consideration from the customer in advance
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24.3 significant changes in contract liability balance and unbilled revenue during the year

Contract liability - Mobilisation advances

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
{(Restated)
Opening balance 17,710.52 15,556.89
Less: Revenue recognized during the year from balance at the beginning of the year (15,327.80) (9,820.60)
Add: Advances received during the year not recognized as revenue 13,190.41 11,974.23
Closing balance 15,573.13 17,710.52

Contract assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
(Restated)

Opening balance 214.45

Less: Billed during the year (214.45) -

Add: Unbilled during the year 847.67 214.45

Closing balance 847.67 214.45

24.4 The Company receives payments from customers based upon contractual billing schedules. Accounts

to consideration becomes unconditional.

24.5 Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:

receivable are recorded when the right

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

(Restated)
Contracted price with the customers 140,504.88 105,854.27
Reduction towards variables considerations (Discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price -
concessions
Revenue from contracts with customers (as per statement of profit and loss) 140,504.88 105,854.27

24.6 Transaction price - remaining performance obligation:

Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related
disclosures for contracts where the revenue recognised corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performance

completed to date.

The aggregate value of performance obligations that are partially unsatisfied as at March 31, 2025, other than those meeting the exclusion

criteria mentioned above, is Rs. 94,851.07 lakhs (March 31, 2024 - Rs, 147,202.21 lakhs

over a period based on specific project schedules.

). Construction contracts are progressively executed
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25 Other income

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Income on financial assets measured at amortised cost
Net gain on financial asset measured at amortised cost 0.01 -
Interest income
Bank deposits 1,291.85 1,132.08
Security deposits 3.63 3.62
Loans 781.68 710.65
2,077.17 1,846.35
Other non-operating income
Duty drawback on exports 0.05 11.50
Dividend income 3,800.00 3,800.14
Interest on income tax refund 1.09 -
Net gain on termination of lease liability 0.58
Net gain on disposal of property, plant & equipment 0.25 -
Miscellaneous income 32.88 94.12
3,834.85 3,905.76
Total 5,912.02 5,752.11

26 Cost of purchases and contract expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Construction stores, spares and materials purchased 38,573.02 46,599.29
Construction and operating expenses 53,873.33 37,445.93
Trading purchases 4,452.43 352.14
Total 96,898.78 84,397.36

27 Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Opening balance
Stock at site 8,506.16 5,152.60
Work-in-progress 50.01 47.95
8,556.17 5,200.55
Closing balance
Stock at site 4,050.64 8,506.16
Work-in-progress 1,381.15 50.01
5,431.79 8,556.17
Total changes in inventaries 3,124.38 (3,355.62)

28 Employee benefit expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Salaries, wages and bonus 9,087.40 7,145.00
Contributions to provident fund and pension (Refer note 36) 257.21 194,07
Gratuity (Refer note 36) 79.61 73.09
Staff welfare expenses 313.67 288.24
Total 9,737.89 7,700.40

29 Finance costs

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Term loan from bank 4.72 5.59
- Liability component of non convertible redeemable Preference shares 63.38 57.36
- Loan from related parties 699.83 495.40
Lease liabilities 26.60 in
Other borrowing cost 1,410.81 1,552.36
Interest on delayed payment of taxes/others 27.81 87.11
Total 2,233.15 2,239.53
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25

26

27

28

29

Other income

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Income on financial assets measured at amortised cost
Net gain on financial asset measured at amortised cost 0.01 -
Interest income
Bank deposits 1,291.85 1,132.08
Security deposits 3.63 3.62
Loans 781.68 710.65
2,077.17 1,846.35
Other non-operating income
Duty drawback on exports 0.05 11.50
Dividend income 3,800.00 3,800.14
Interest on income tax refund 1.09
Net gain on termination of lease liability 0.58
Net gain on disposal of property, plant & equipment 0.25 -
Miscellaneous income 32.88 94,12
3,834.85 3,905.76
Total 5,912.02 5,752.11

Cost of purchases and contract expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Construction stores, spares and materials purchased 38,573.02 46,599.29
Construction and operating expenses 53,873.33 37,445.93
Trading purchases 4,452.43 352.14
Total 96,898.78 84,397.36

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)

Opening balance

Stock at site 8,506.16 5,152.60

Work-in-progress 50.01 47.95
8,556.17 5,200.55

Closing balance

Stock at site 4,050.64 8,506.16

Work-in-progress 1,381.15 50.01
5,431.79 8,556.17

Total changes in inventories 3,124.38 (3,355.62)

Employee benefit expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Salaries, wages and bonus 9,087.40 7,145.00
Contributions to provident fund and pension (Refer note 36) 257.21 194.07
Gratuity (Refer note 36) 79.61 73.09
Staff welfare expenses 313.67 288.24
Total 9,737.89 7,700.40

Finance costs

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Term loan from bank 4,72 5.59
Liability component of non convertible redeemable Preference shares 63.38 57.36
- Loan from related parties 699.83 495.40
Lease liabilities 26.60 3171
Other borrowing cost 1,410.81 1,552.36
Interest on delayed payment of taxes/others 27.81 97.11
Total 2,233.15 2,239.53
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30 Depreciation and amortisation expenses

31

311

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
_[Restated)
Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment (Refer note 4) 33691 248.76
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (Refer note 5) 152.15 155.57
Amortisation of Intangible assets (Refer note 6) 121.74 119.55
Total 610.80 523.88
Other expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Business Promotion Expenses 408.30 290.52
Expected credit loss - 492.37
Insurance 142.92 96.49
Legal and professional fees 716.11 503.07
Office expenses 580.37 41543
Power and fuel 85.76 71.13
Payment to auditors (Refer note 31.1) 14.08 12.96
Rent 349.25 259.40
Repairs and maintenance
- Others 278.05 371.54
Travelling, lodging and boarding 1,419.82 1,035.29
Net loss on disposal of property, plant & equipment - 1.79
Corporate social responsibility (Refer note 31.2) 377.25 104.19
Miscellaneous expenses 173.05 128.61
Total 4,544.96 3,782.79
Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses:
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
As Auditor:
As the statutory auditor:
Audit fees 3.58 9.96
In other capacity:
Certification fees 4.50 3.00
Total 14.08 12.96

Expenses on corporate social responsibility:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024
(Restated)

the Companies Act, 2013)

2. Amount of expenditure incurred

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset

(i) On purposes other than (i) above

Amount not spend during the year on:

(i} Construction/acquisition of any asset

(i) On purposes other than (i} above

Amount of shortfall for the year

Amount of cumulative shortfall at the end of the year
Reason for shartfall

Amount yet to be spent/paid

Details of Related party transactions
Vishvaraj Foundation

Liability incurred by entering into contractual obligations

Nature of CSR activities:

1. Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year (under Section 135 of

Healthcare, education,
eradicating poverty and
malnutrition

157.10

377.25

377.25

83.86

104.19

104.19

Healthcare, education,
eradicating poverty and
malnutrition




Vishvaraj Environment Limited (Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)
CIN: U74999MH2008PLC186950

Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2025

All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

32 Current tax and deferred tax

321

322

323

324

Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss

For the year ended For the year ended
Particiliie March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Current tax:
In respect of current year 6,534.30 3,431.56
(Excess) provision of tax relating to earlier years (32.95) -
6,501.35 3,431.56
Deferred tax (credit):
In respect of current year (5,354.96) (128.01)
(9,354.96) (128.01)
Total tax expense recognised in the reporting year (2,853.61) 3,303.55

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
{Restated)
i) Deferred tax
Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans 2.00 0.83
Total 2.00 0.83

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Compan

y's domestic tax rate:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

(Restated)

Profit before tax 29,266.94 16,318.04
Tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Income Tax using the Company's domestic Tax rate # 7,365.90 4,106.92
Effect of items that are not deductible in determining taxable profit (9,100.09) 104 .97
Effect of items that are not deductible in determining accounting profits (969.37) (969.00)
Income tax related to earlier years (119.79) 62.24
Deferred tax not recognised - (0.00)
(Excess) provision of tax related to earlier years (32.95) -
Effect of difference in tax rate -
Others 2.69 (1.59)
Income tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss (2,853.61) 3,303.55

# The tax rate used for the reconciliations above is the carporate tax rate plus surcharge
and secondary and higher education cess on corporate tax, payable by corporate entities in India on

1961.

(as applicable) on corporate tax, education cess
taxable profits under Income Tax Act

'

The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as

income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

(such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions
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33 garni ity Share
Particulars

For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 202

{al Prafit tar the year 3212055 1301449
(b} Weighted average numbet of ardinary shar e 142,000,000 142,002,000
cutstanding for the purpose of basvie earnings per share
Inumbers)
(e} Eftect of potential ordinary shares (numbers)
1) Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 142,000,000 142,004,000
computing thiuted earmings per share [(B] + ¢ 1] [number)
tel Earnings per shire, face value of £ 45/ sach

= Basic [{fap/ib)] (1) 2462 017

— Diluted [{a)/{d]] (7] 1262 2171

Thee Board at ity meeting held on March 28, 202% approved sub-division of eguity shares of the Céam,
pald up shares of face vilue of 5 [Five) per share, comsequential amendment to the Mamors
restated cansidening the face value of T8 each in accordance with Ind AS 17

3a

ndum al

“Earnings per Share”

A

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 024

(i} Contingent Liabilities

il income tas asseviment SO0

bl Incame tas demands 19800

o) funited period guarantess 76, 403 00 A7 ranun

Limited period guarantess
The Company 15 into progect development, wheesin it bids fo

repayment, and VEL is responsible for the construetion of the

and accordingly, VEL i expectod to undertake the construction risk In view of the hme,
fo Commercial Operations Date of the projects VEL's exposure is significantiy Tt A

towards the lender’s dues

t PR

project as well as the p

VEL

HAM contracts, and sets up 5PV far executing the same. The projoet 5PV have seeured cash tlow La
with Vishvara) Enviranment Limited ["VEL"} 1espensible for the construction of the propects, 5PV lenders have rec

pany with exsting face value of 210 {Ten) per share sach fully pad up inte 1 (Two) each fully
ssocration of the Company The Futnings per share for the poor petinds have heen

sedl project financing,
ourse gnly to the project cash flows at SV duting sperational perind for delit
fowards progect cost is between 20-30% of the canstruction contract.
VEL has provided conditional guarantee to the 5Py project lenders Uil project stabilization period linked

ed on account of the cantractual clauses, wherein the projeel 5Py Authonty takes over most of the nisk

Autharmy

inchide atieast 100%
of Lender’s
Trues[CO0 achirved
in Decembier 2023}

Authority shall
nclude atfeas A%%
of Lenider's Duesy

Ch Waste | Mahest Waste | Agra Waste Water | Vishvara| Vidarbha | Vish lapur
P ks W BN i asajSOMpUE | L Filgenth
Project Water Water Solar Energy Private | Solar Energy Private Solar SPV Limited
Private Limited Private Limited Private Limited Limited Limited
Peak Dd_)LpermuulHr 5,044, 1 10, 196 00 22 4040 00 15,3200 16,033 80 5,578 00
Debt ofs ayan 31 3 200y 4741480 10,054 10 14,829.10 1,000 00 1,000 00 1,000, 00
Corporate Guarantor to the project lender upto year® 2026 2027 2078 2026 2026 2016
Fah B i AR htra 51 Mah, Stat
NMCG [ National | NMCG { National A ate] MatarashdeState
4 Eteetricity Flectriity Flectrioty
Authority #t project Mahagenco Mission for Clean Missiontor Clean o 5
[stributicn Bistribution Hatribution
Ganga) Ganga) ¢
Lompany (4 Company L1d __Company (g
Tetmination T Terminat:
" :
Teomitation Fayment during Fayment diring Payment duning
entire tevm of PRA, | entire term of PPA_ | entire term of PPA,
Erymnt by : TERitiaf by the Authori the Authorit by the Authorit
L o
Autharity past Payment il the Payment tull the " ; .: | ‘::e i b"h ; ul T ¥ vh i ul t; Y
. . 1l " e
Relevant clause in the Concession Agreement with the praject COD, shall | project CO0, by the | project COD, by the 'T :ﬂ‘:,“ af | en e ‘::qr:e;. wof ; : .I:‘:nu'iﬂ‘!i of

Authority shall
thelude atleast B5%
of Lender’s (e

L

@ mutually agreed,

thooses 1o takeover

ender's Dues or bess

i ewent &

Lendor's Dues or fesy
as mutually agrocd

1

1
endar’s Dues or less

as mutually agreed,

thonty
(i

the project assets

o evEnt A

hooies Lo takeguer
the ptoject asaets

inevent Auth

rhooses te takeover

The project assets

Hinked ta the Commerciat Cperations Date of the progect

Contingent Liabilities related to GST

As at the reperting date, the Company hay the follawing conti npent labilities relating to 65T matters under |itgation:

1 ~ Entity Name State Year Stage Amount Forum Case ID Issue
Appeal hefore Penalty under

. P Central Appeiiate - -
Vithvatag Environment Limited Maharashirg 0d-2: Commissioner of Ry .43 Lakhy Autherit ADITOZIS0125719) section 74 of
o L
Appeal i CGST A

a, i b 157 el
A ppeal befooe Ry 1757 Lakhs “fats Appellste Recovery under

Viskivara) Environment [imited Karnataka 2070-21 Commiusdons ol linctuding inferast Autharit ALZAL22501 fe340 segtion 7 af

uthority

Appral

* The tatal amount disclosed as contirigent lability in respect of the ghove cames i fs 100 Lakhs

and penafty) |

341 The Company ditd not expect any outflow of economic resourees i respect of the above and therefore no grovisian was made in Fespieit therisol

35 Segment information
35.1 The Campany has disclosed segment

ikt

d financial st

ents which are

in the ¢

‘Dperating Segments’ ne disclosares related ta segments are presented in these inandal statements

352 Geographical information
The Compaiiy has opier ations withio India and ot side Lrnehi s

1l the

distiosuses 0 tespedt of the geograph

T For the year ended | For the yenr ended
Particulars
) ! March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Revenus fram operations from customers within indsa 140,444 6% 105,308 55
Revenue fram operations from customers outside lndia (ot
includes the export sale W branch Maldives as mentioned 6019 aan 7
beliow)
[Toral Revenue 140,504.88 105,854.27
Expon Sale to Branch at Maldives .
5 For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars

March 31, 2025

(Hevenue fram operations from customers autside india

March 31, 2024

i SEgment are piven

[Export made by VEL {India] to VEL Maldives branch] 223 a3
Lesy Elminatuanis of Revene 1335 1640 57)
Total Revenue =
ment asseis”
Ag at March 31, As at March 31,
i :
i 2025 2028

Assets within lndia 25,629 69 1571745
Assets putside Indid 2418 10
Total Asset 135.55)

¥ Sepment assets (eptesents non curtent assety extiuding lnancial instruments and deferred tas asset

353 Information about major customers:

Revenue from operations includes revenue arising from contract income of INR 61,153, 68 lakhs

Iyear snded March 41, 2004 18 5

Maich 312024 four| major cuttome which account for 43.67% (vear ended March 31 2074 55 A% of the 11l revenue

beteim

CLST Art

presented in the same financal report Accordingly, i terms of Paragraph 4 of ind A% 108

H.638 70 lakhs) which arose from sales 1o thees |year ended
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36 Employee benefit plans

36.1 (a) Defined contribution plans:

(A) Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks,

The Company participates in Provident fund as defined contribution plans on behalf of relevant personnel. Any expense recognised in relation to
provident fund represents the value of contributions payable during the period by the Company at rates specified by the rules of provident fund. The only
amounts included in the balance sheet are those relating to the prior months contributions that were not paid until after the end of the reporting period.

Provident fund
In accordance with the Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive
benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified
percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The contributions, as specified under the law, are made to the provident fund administered and managed
by Government of India (GOI). The Company has no further obligations under the fund managed by the GOI beyond its monthly contributions which are
charged to the statement of Profit and Loss in the period they are incurred. The benefits are paid to employees
the Company.

Contribution to defined contribution plans, recognised in the statement of profit and loss for

on their retirement or resignation from

the year under employee benefits expense, are as under:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
1) Employer's contribution to provident fund and pension 257.21 194.07
ii) Employer's contribution te labour fund - -
Total 257.21 194.07

(b) Defined benefit plans:

Gratuity

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, an unfunded defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees, which provides for lump sum
payment to vested employees at retirement or at death while in employment or on termination of the employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days
salary, as applicable, payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Company accounts for the
liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial valuation,

The most recent actuanial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out for the year ended March 31, 2025 by an

independent actuary. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using
the projected unit credit method.

the most significant of which are detailed below:
(1) Salary risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the
members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

(2) Interest rate risk

A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision.

(3) Asset liability matching risk:
The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. entity has to manage pay-out based on pay as you go basis from own funds.

(4) Mortality risk:

Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

(B) Principal actuarial assumptions used:

(C

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31,2024
(Restated)

1. Discount rate 6.40% 7.00%

2. Salary escalation 6.00% 6.00%

3. Interest Rate for Interest on Net DBO 7.00% 7.20%

4. Withdrawal rate 15.00% 15.00%

5. Mortality rate IALM 2012-14 (Ult.)

Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

(Restated)
Current service cost 62.85 60.66
Net interest cost 16.76 12.43
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in profit or loss (Refer note 30) 79.61 73.09

The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in the 'Em
and loss.

ployee benefits expenses’ line item
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(D) Expenses recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OC1)

Particulars For the year ended
For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation for the year
- Due to changes in demographic assumptions - (1.61)
- Due to changes in financial assumptions 9.22 4.55
- Due to experience adjustment (1.27) 0.35
Net {income)/expense for the period recognized in OCI 7.95 3.29
(E) Amount recognised in the statement of assets and liabilities
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation (314.62) (239.50)
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation (314.62) (239.50)
(F) Net liability recognised in the statement of assets and liabilities
Recognised under: (Refer note 21) As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Non-current provision 277.27 197.33
Current provision 37.35 42.17
Total 314.62 239.50

(G} Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars
th d
For the year ended Farthe yearsnded
March 31, 2024
March 31, 2025 (Restated)
Cpening defined benefit obligation 239.50 172.65
Interest cost 16.76 12.43
Current service cost 62.85 60.66
Benefits paid directly by the employer (12.44) (9.53)
Actuarial {gains)/losses on obligations - Due to change in demographic assumptions . (1.61)
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations - Due to change in financial assumplions 9.22 4.55
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations - Due to experience (1.27) 0.35
Closing defined benefit obligation 314.62 239.50

(H) Sensitivity analysis

The Sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. These sensitivities show the hypothetical impact of a change in each of the lied
assumptions in isolation. While each of these sensitivities holds all other dssumptions constant, in practice such assumptions rarely change in isolation
and the asset value changes may offset the impact to some extent, For presenting the sensitivities, the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation has
been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the Defined
Benefit Obligation presented above. There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in the preparation of the Sensitivity Analysis from
previous year.

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting For the year ended
For the year ended
March 31, 2025 NibCheal, 2074
{Restated)
Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions
Rate of discounting
Impact of +1% change (15.09) (8.67)
Impact of -1% change 16.63 8.77
Rate of salary increase
Impact of +1% change 13.96 B8.77
Impact of -1% change (12.84) (8.83)
Rate of withdrawal
Impact of +1% change {2.14) (1.54)
Impact of -1% change 2.14

(1) Other disclosures
The weighted average duration of the obligations as at March 31, 2025 is 4 years (as at March 31, 2024: 4 years).
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37 Related party disclosures

37.1 Details of related parties

Description of relationship

Name of the related party

Parent company

Premier Financial Services Private Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary companies

Maheshtala Waste Water Management Private Limited

Vishvaraj Steel Private Limited (w.e.f. February 26, 2024)

Vishvaraj Overseas Private Limited (w.e.f. March 14, 2024)

Dhanbad Waste Water Management Private Limited (w.e.f. November
27, 2024)

Vishvaraj Environment AMC Private Limited (w.e.f August 21, 2024)
Vishvaraj Renewables Private Limited (w.e f. September 10, 2024)
Koradi Waste Water Management Private Limited {w.e.f. October 16,
2024)

Bhusawal Waste Water Management Private Limited (w.e.f, October
16, 2024)

Paras Waste Water Management Private Limited (w e.f. October 16,
2024)

MSKVY Fifteenth Solar SPV Limited {w.e.f. December 5, 2024)
Vishvara| Foundation (w.e.f. June 6, 2023)

Vishvaraj Environment International Private Limited (w.ef May 25,
2023 upto November 30, 2024)

Vishvara) Vidarbha Solar Energy Private Limited (w.e.f. October 11,
Vishvaraj Solapur Solar Energy Private Limited (w.e.f. October 11,
Vishvaraj Maharashtra Solar Energy Private Limited (w.ef. February 20,
2025)

Subsidiary companies

Vedic Waste Water Management Private Limited

Chandrapur Waste Water Management Private Limited

Nagpur Waste Water Management Private Limited

VEPL MSPL Smart Water Private Limited

Agra Waste Water Management Private Limited (w.e f. July 13, 2022)
Vishvara] Waste Water Management Private Limited

Step-down wholly owned subsidiary companies

Nisargika Innovation Forum (w.e.f. July 3, 2024)
IV M/s Vishvara] - Vedic (w.e.f. December 12, 2022)

Joint Operations

Jakson-Vishvaraj Joint Venture
VEPL-PC Snehal Joint Venture

Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence (where transactions
have taken place)

Vishvaraj Infrastructure Private Limited
Vhepl-Adce Pinglai Infrastructure Private Limited
Saptrang Commodeal Private Limited

Vishvaraj Infraprojects Toll Road Private Limited

Key management personnel

Mr. Arun Lakhani (Managing Director]

Mrs. Vandana Lakhani (Director w.e f. May 01, 2023)

Mr. Sarang Lakhanee (Whole Time Director)

Mr. Sidhaartha Lakhanee (Whole Time Director till February 28, 2025)
Mr, Satyajeet Raut (Director)

Mr. Suresh Agiwal {Director) (Chief Financial Officer till Novernber 28,
2024)

Mr. Girish Nadkarni (Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. November 29, 2024)
Mr. Sutanu Behuria (Independent Director till September 30, 2023)
Mr. Sutanu Behuria (Non Executive Director w.e f May 01, 2024)

Mr. Anurag Shrivatsava (Independent Director)

Mr. Amit Sonkusare (Company Secretary w.e f April 01, 2021)

Relatives of Key management personnel

Mrs. Vandana Lakhan (till April 30, 2023)
Mr. Sidhaartha Lakhanee {w.e f. March 01, 2025)

t :
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37.2 Transactions during the year with related parties

For the year ended March|For the year ended March
Particulars
31, 2025 31, 2024
A|Contract revenue:
I|Wholly owned subsidiary companies
Maheshtala Waste Water Management Private Limited 4,731.05 8,601.96
Bhusawal Waste Water Management Private Limited 24,987.30
Koradi Waste Water Management Private Limited 7,892.98 -
37,611.33 8,601.96
Il|5ubsidiary companies
Nagpur Waste Water Management Private Limited 21,108.31 4,484.19
Vepl Mspl Smart Water Private Limited 451.49 141.45
Chandrapur Waste Water Management Private Limited 1,421.40 883.82
Vedic Waste Water Management Private Limited 1,779.48 2,563.70
Agra Waste Water Management Private Limited 12,334.82 12,146.37
37,095.50 20,219.53
11|5tep-down wholly owned subsidiary companies
JV M/s Vishvaraj-Vedic 6,465.21 10,773.42
6,465.21 10,773.42
Total 81,172.04 39,594.91
B|Trading sale:
I{Wholly owned subsidiary companies
MSKVY Fifteenth Solar Spv Limited 1,282.53
Vishvaraj Vidarbha Solar Energy Private Limited 1,649.64
Vishvaraj Solapur Solar Energy Private Limited 1,610.10 -
Total 4,542.27 -
C{Material purchases/Contract services
I|Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence (where transactions have
taken place)
Vishvaraj Infrastructure Private Limited 1,953.96 2,231.92
Total 1,953.96 2,231.92
D|Directors’ remuneration
||Key management personnel
Mr.Arun Lakhani 300.00 300.00
Mrs.Vandana Lakhani (w.e.f 01.05.2023) 300.00 275.00
Mr.Sidhaartha Lakhanee (till 28.02.2025) 275.00 300.00
Mr.Sarang Lakhanee 300.00 300.00
Mr.Suresh Agiwal 169.55 168.21
Mr.Satyajeet Raut 175.61 115.82
Total 1,520.16 1,459.03
E|Directors’ sitting fees:
I|Key management personnel
Mr.Sutanu Behuria 4.00 6.00
Mr.Anurag Shrivatsava 7.00 7.50
Total 11.00 13.50
F|Rent paid:
I|Relatives of key management personnel
Mrs.Vandana Lakhani (till 30.04.2023) 1.50
ke 1.50
Il|Key management personnel
Mrs.Vandana Lakhani (w.e.f 01.05.2023) 18.00 16.50
18.00 16.50
Total 18.00 18.00
G|Salary paid:
||Key management personnel
Mr.Amit Sonkusare (w.e.f 01.04.2021) 34.61 31.3%
Mr.Girish Nadkarni (w.e.f. 29.11.2024) 104.65 Z
139.26 31.11
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X

—

=

-

Relatives of key management personnel
Mr.Sidhaartha Lakhanee (w.e.f. 01.03.2025)

Total

Interest expense:
Parent Company
Premier Financials Services Private Limited
Total

Equity dividend paid:
Parent Company
Premier Financials Services Private Limited

Key management personnel
Mr_Arun Lakham
Mrs. Vandana Lakhani

Total
Preference dividend paid:

Parent Company
Premier Financials Services Private Limited

Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence (where transactions have
token place)

Saptrang Commodeal Private Limited

Vishvaraj Infraprojects Toll Road Private Limited

Key management personnel
Mr. Arun Lakhani

Mrs. Vandana Lakhani

Mr. Sidhaartha Lakhanee
Mr. Sarang Lakhanee

Tetal

Investment in equity instruments during the year

1{Wholly owned subsidiary companies

Vishvaraj Environment International Private Limited

Vishvaraj Foundation

Vishvaraj Steel Private Limited

Vishvaraj Renewables Private Limited

Vishvaraj Overseas Private Limited

Vishvaraj Environment Amc Private Limited

Bhusawal Waste Water Management Private Limited

Koradi Waste Water Management Private Limited

Dhanbad Waste Water Management Private Limited

Paras Waste Water Management Private Limited

MSKVY Fifteenth Solar SPV Limited

Vishvaraj Solapur Solar Energy Private Limited

Vishvaraj Vidarbha Solar Energy Private Limited

Vishvaraj Maharashtra Solar Energy Private Limited
Total

Sale of investment in equity instrument during the year
Wholly owned subsidiary companies
Premier Financial Services Private Limited

Total

M| Mobilization advances received

|| Wholly owned subsidiary companies

Koradi Waste Water Management Private Limited
Dhanbad Waste Water Management Private Limited
MSKVY Fifteenth Solar SPV Limited

Vishvaraj Solapur Solar Energy Private Limited
Vishvara) Vidarbha Solar Energy Private Limited

25.00
25.00
164.26 3111
699.83 49540
699.83 495.40
3,598.23 3,598.23
3,598.23 3,598.23
0.73 0.73
0.73 0.73
1.46 1.46
3,599.69 3,599.69
4.26 8.51 |
4.26 8.51
148.94 297.88
26.47 52.95
175.41 350.83
5.65 11.30
12.40 24.79
0.01 0.01
0.01 0.01
18.07 36.11
197.74 395.45
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
100.00
1.00
100.00
1.00
100.00
51.00
51.00
051 :
407.51 3.00
1.00
1.00
833.27
4,500.00
21.69
1,377.82 -
1,361.37

8,094.15
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Step-down wholly owned subsidiary companies

- T

w

IV M/s Vishvaraj- Vedic JV 122.66
- 122.66
Total 8,094.15 122.66
N|[Loan taken during the year*
Parent Company
Premier Financial Services Private Limited 42,590.00 17,550.00
Total 42,590.00 17,550.00
0|Loan repaid during the year*®
Parent Company
Premier Financial Services Private Limited 7.925.00 25,540.00
Total 7,925.00 25,540.00
Loans given during the year*
Wholly owned subsidiary companies
Maheshtala Waste Water Management Private Limited 497.61
Vishvaraj Overseas Private Limited 1.75
Vishvaraj Environment Amc Private Limited 20.00
Vishvara) Steel Private Limited 445.97 14.52
Vishvaraj Renewables Private Limited 3,135.05 >
Bhusawal Waste Water Management Private Limited 14,744.00
Koradi Waste Water Management Private Limited 10,000.10
Dhanbad Waste Water Management Private Limited 4,408.80
Paras Waste Water Management Private Limited 0.10
MSKVY Fifteenth Solar SPV Limited 1,364.10
Vishvaraj Foundation 10.00
Vishvara) Solapur Solar Energy Private Limited 1,580.43
Vishvaraj Vidarbha Solar Energy Private Limited 1,598.02
Vishvaraj Maharashtra Solar Energy Private Limited 0.08
37,806.01 14.52
Subsidiary Companies
Nagpur Waste Water Management Brivate Limited 7,683.80 -
Vepl Mspl Smart Water Private Limited 90.05
Chandrapur Waste Water Management Private Limited - 698.26
Agra Waste Water Management Private Limited 210.68 112.36
Vishvaraj Waste Water Management Private Limited - 0.06
7,894.48 900.74
Step-down wholly owned subsidiary companies
IV M/s Vishvaraj- Vedic 190.91
- 190.91
Total 45,700.49 1,i06.17
Q|Loans given received back during the year*
Subsidiary Companies
Nagpur Waste Water Management Private Limited - 12,11
Vepl Mspl Smart Water Private Limited 90.05
Chandrapur Waste Water Management Erivate Limited 187.37
Vishvara] Waste Water Management Private Limited 0.06
277.49 12.11
Step-down wholly owned subsidiary companies
IV M/s Vishvaraj- Vedic 116.61
116.61
Total 394.10 12.11
R|CSR Expenditure incurred
Wholly owned subsidiary companies
Vishvaraj Foundation 377.25 97.75
Total 377.25 97.75
Sponsorship expense paid
I|Key management personnel
Mr. Sarang Lakhanee - 73.66
Total - 73.66




Vishvaraj Environment Limited (Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)
CIN: U74993MH2008PLC186950

Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2025

All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

37.3

-

- M

Amounts outstanding with related parties

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Investment in equity instruments

Wholly owned subsidiary companies

Maheshtala Waste Water Management Private Limited
Vishvaraj Environment International Private Limited
Vishvaraj Foundation

Vishvaraj Steel Private Limited

Vishvara) Renewables Private Limited

Vishvaraj Overseas Private Limited

Vishvaraj Enviranment AMC Private Limited
Bhusawal Waste Water Management Private Limited
Koradi Waste Water Management Private Limited
Ohanbad Waste Water Management Private Limited
Paras Waste Water Management Private Limited
MSKVY Fifteenth Solar SPV Limited

Vishvaraj Solapur Solar Energy Private Limited
Vishvaraj Vidarbha Solar Energy Private Limited
Vishvara) Maharashtra Solar Energy Private Limited

Subsidiary companies

Nagpur Waste Water Management Private Limited
Vepl Mspl Smart Water Private Limited

Chandrapur Waste Water Management Private Limited
Agra Waste Water Management Private Limited

Vedic Waste Water Management Private Limited
Vishvara] Waste Water Management Private Limited

Investment in preference instruments
Subsidiary companies
Vishvaraj Waste Water Management Private Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary companies

Maheshtala Waste Water Management Private Limited
Koradi Waste Water Management Private Limited
Dhanbad Waste Water Management Private Limited
MSKVY Fifteenth Solar SPV Limited

Vishvaraj Solapur Solar Energy Private Limited
Vishvaraj Vidarbha Solar Energy Private Limited

Subsidiary companies
Agra Waste Water Management Private Limited

Step-down wholly owned subsidiary companies
W M/s Vishvaraj- Vedic

Loan payable*
Parent Company
Premier Financial Services Private Limited

Total

Total

Total

Total

100.00 100.00
- 1.00
1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00
1.00 .
1.00
1.00
100.00
1.00
100.00
1.00
100.00
51.00
51.00
0.51 -
509.51 103.00
80.00 90.00
0.74 0.74
1,129.50 1,128.50
74.00 74.00
0.51 0.51
0.50 0.50
1,295.25 1,295.25
1,804.76 1,398.25
700.00 700.00
700.00 700.00
101.45 1,695.21
833.27
4,500.00
21.69
1,377.82
1,361.37 .
8,195.60 1,695.21
3,531.65 6,615.35
3,531.65 6,615.35
122.66
- 122.66
11,727.25 8,433.22
34,665.00

34,665.00
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m

m

- T

Loans and advances receivable*

Wholly owned subsidiary companies

Maheshtala Waste Water Management Private Limited
Vishvaraj Overseas Private Limited

Vishvaraj Environment Amc Private Limited
Vishvaraj Steel Private Limited

Vishvaraj Renewables Private Limited

Bhusawal Waste Water Management Private Limited
Koradi Waste Water Management Private Limited
Dhanbad Waste Water Management Private Limited
Paras Waste Water Management Private Limited
MSKVY Fifteenth Solar SPV Limited

Vishvara) Solapur Solar Energy Private Limited
Vishvaraj Vidarbha Solar Energy Private Limited
Vishvaraj Foundation

Vishvara) Maharashtra Solar Energy Private Limited

Subsidiary Companies

Nagpur Waste Water Management Private Limited
Vepl Mspl Smart Water Private Limited

Chandrapur Waste Water Management Private Limited
Agra Waste Water Management Private Limited
Vishvara] Waste Water Management Private Limited

Step-down wholly owned subsidiary companies
IV M/s Vishvaraj Vedic

Total

Trade payables
Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence (where transactions have taken
ploce)

Vishvaraj Infrastructure Private Limited
Total

Trade receivables

Wholly owned subsidiary companies

Maheshtala Waste Water Management Private Limited
Bhusawal Waste Water Management Private Limited

Subsidiary companies

Nagpur Waste Water Management Private Limited
Vepl Mspl Smart Water Private Limited

Chandrapur Waste Water Management Private Limited
Vedic Waste Water Management Private Limited

Agra Waste Water Management Private Limited

Step-down wholly owned subsidiary companies
IV M/s Vishvaraj-Vedic

Total

1,258.61 761.00
175 -
20.00
460.49 14.52
3,135.05 :
14,744.00
10,000.10
4,408.80
0.10
1,364.10
1,580.43
1,598.02
10.00
0.08 -
38,581.53 775.52
24,141.80 16,458.00
- 90.05
1,461.52 1,648.89
4,703.04 4,492.36
- 0.06
30,306.35 22,689.36
77.35 193.96
77.35 193.96
68,965.24 23,658.85
4,234.98 5,099.90
4,234.98 5,099.90
656.47 5,308.92
14,186.27
14,842.74 5,308.92
11,984.83 136.73
666.53 337.55
892,80 1,222.20
1,062.42 1,472.43
5,742.76 7,478.14
20,349.33 10,647.05
3,182.25 2,020.85
3,182.25 2,020.85
38,374.32 17,976.82
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H|Rent Payable
1|/Key management personnel
Mrs. Vandana Lakhani 1.62 1.62
Total 1.62 1.62
I|Interest payable
I{Parent Company
Premier Financial Services Private Limited 699.83
Total 699.83

Nk

Financial guarantee given
Wholly owned subsidiary companies

Maheshtala Waste Water Management Private Limited 10,296.00
Vishvaraj Vidarbha Solar Energy Private Limited 15,352.00
Vishvaraj Solapur Solar Energy Private Limited 16,033.00
MSKVY Fifteenth Solar SPV Limited 6,978.00 -
48,659.00 -
1| Subsidiary companies
Chandrapur Waste Water Management Private Limited 5,044.00
Agra Waste Water Management Private Limited 22,400.00
27,444.00
Total 76,103.00
K|Preference dividend payable

Parent Company
Premier Financials Services Private Limited 4.26 4.26

4.26 4.26

Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence (where transactions have taken place)

Saptrang Commaodeal Private Limited 148.94 148.94
Vishvaraj Infraprojects Toll Road Private Limited 26.47 26.47
175.41 175.41

Ill|Key management personnel
Mr. Arun Lakhani 5.65 565
Mrs. Vandana Lakhani 12.40 12.40
Mr. Sidhaartha Lakhanee 0.01 0.01
Mr. Sarang Lakhanee 0.01 0.01
18.07 18.07
Total 197.74 197.74

* These amounts are based on contractual terms of respective financial instruments and do not include adjustments on account of effective interest
rates, fair value changes, etc.
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38 Financial instruments and risk management

38.1 Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as Boing concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt offset by cash and bank balances and total

equity of the Company.

As at March 31, As at March 31,

Particulars 2025 2024
IRestated] |

Long term debt 26,086.94 -
Short term debt 9,250.81 38.19
Less: Cash and cash eguivalents (2,308.91) (8,967.17}
Net debt 33,028.84 (8,928.98)
Total Equity 73,456.63 45,139.46
Net debt to equity ratio 0.45 (0.20)]
Debt to equity ratio 0.48 0.00

The Company has not defaulted on any loans payable, and there has been no breach of any loan covenants,

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

38.2 Categories of financial instruments

The following table provides categorisation of all financial instruments

As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2025 2024
(Restated)
|Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
(a) Investments 56,952.61 19,636.84
(b} Trade receivable 91,089.50 49,902.19
(c) Cash and cash equivalents 2,308.91 8,967.17
|d} Other bank balances 4,589.01 2,534.73
(e) Loans 18,105.70 8,877.88
(f) Other financial assets 20,402.20 14,156.12
Total financial assets 1,93,447.93 1,04,074.93
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
(a) Borrowings 35,337.75 38.19
(b} Lease liabilities 330.73 423,65
(c) Trade payables 83,112.78 50,802.09
{d) Other financial liabilities B64.74 801.36
Total financial liabilities 1,19,646.00 52,065.29

38.3 Financial risk management objectives

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance
and support the Company’s operations. The Company's principal financial assets comprise cash and bank balance, trade and other receivables that
derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to various financial risks such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management team oversees
the management of these risks. The Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, to fair values or to future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial
instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and other
market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including
investrnents, loans, borrowings and deposits.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets
and finanaial liabilities held at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

(b) Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates,
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating
interest rates. The following table provides amount of the Company’s floating rate borrowings:

As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2025 2024
(Restated)
Floating rate borrowings 4291 -
Total 42.91 -
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Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings taken at
fioating rates. With all other variables held constant, the Company's prafit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as

follows:
Particulars Interest rate sensitivity analysis
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
(Restated)
Impact on Profit before tax for the year
Increase by 50 Basis Points (0.21)
Decrease by 50 Basis Points 0.21 =

{c) Foreign currency risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's payables/recewables denominated in foreign

currency
Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the reporting date (in respective currency):
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2025 2024
{Restated)
(a). Payables
In USD 14.52 18.36
Eauvalent in T million 1,242.92 1,530.57
In EURD 0.48 048
Equivalent in T million 42.85 43.25
(b). Receivables
In LSD 12.15 18.15
Equivalent in ¥ million 1,039.72 1.513.30

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following table demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonatile possible change in exchange rate, with all other variables held constant. The mpact on
the Company’s profit betore tax due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and habilities is as follows:

Impact on Profit/({Loss) before tax for the year

For the year ended
) For the year ended
I
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
(a). Payables
USD currency:
0.50% increase {6.21) (7.65)
0.50% decrease 6.21 7.65
EURO currency:
0.50% increase (0.21) {0.22)
0. 50% decrease 021 0.22
(b). Receivables
USD currency:
0.50% increase 5.20 75T
0.50% decrease {5:20) {7.57)

38.4 Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will net meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables)

a. Trade receivables
The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with counterparties that have sufficient ¢redit rating. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals,
establishing credit imits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers ta which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course
of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss maodel to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company
has applied a simphfied approach under Expected Credit Loss (ECL} model for measurement and recognition of impairment losses on trade receivables.
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b. Financial instruments and cash deposits

is.

n

w

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Campany's in accordance with the Company's policy. Investments of
surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit imits are
reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis. The limits are set to minimize the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate
financial loss through a counterparty's potential failure to make payments.

. Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees have been provided as corporate guarantees to financial institutions and banks that have extended credit faclities to the
Company's related party/subsidiary. In this regard, the Company does not foresee any significant credit risk exposure.

Liquidity risk management

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. Cash flow from operating activities
provides the funds to service the financial liabilities on a day-to-day basis The Company regularly monitors the rolling forecasts to ensure it has
sufficient cash on an on-going hasis to meet operational needs

Liquidity risk table

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments

|Particulars e 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
1 year

March 31, 2025

Borrowings 9,250.81 37.33 26,049.61 35,337.75
Lease habilities 161.84 198.93 487.44 848.21
Trade payables 79,966.92 3,145.86 - B83,112.78
Other financial liabilities 197.73 - 3,295.55 3,493.28
Total 85,577.30 3,382.12 29,832.60 122,792.02
March 31, 2024

Borrowings 38.19 - - 38.19
Lease liabilities 181.26 360.77 487.44 1,029.47
Trade payables 48,943.07 1,859.02 50,802.09
Other financial liabilities 197.73 - 3,295.55 3,493.28
Total 49,360.25 2,219.79 3,782.99 55,363.03

The above table details the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-dervative financial labilities with agreed repayment periods. The
amount disclosed in the table have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial iabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Company can be required to pay.




Vishvaraj Environment Limited (Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)
CIN: U74999MH2008PLC186950

Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2025

All amounts are ¥ in Lakhs unless ctherwise stated

39 Fair Value Measurement

39.1 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at amortised cost:

The management believes the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost approximate their fair values.

40 Additional regulatory information as required by Schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013

a.

b.

ol

=

»

=

-

-

ra

(%]
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The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during each reporting period.

- There were no Scheme of Arrangements entered by the Company during each reporting period, which required approval from the Competent Authority in terms of

sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

- The Company did not have transactions with Companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956,

. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that

the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

- The Campany has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in

writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b provide anv euarantee. securitv or the like an behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

. The Cempany has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or Bovernment or any government authority.

. The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Cormpanies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,

2017.

Details of loans or advances to promoters, directors, KMPs and related parties, either severally or jointly with any other person, that are (a) repayable on demand or (b)
without specifying any terms or period of repayment, are disclosed in note 9.

There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

. Dther information

Bank guarantee

Company has been sanctioned Bank Guarantee (BG's) limits of Rs. 51,981 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 41,303 lakhs) (includes tully interchangeable 0D limits to NFB
limits of Rs. 850 lakhs as of March 31, 2025) of which it has utilized Rs 42,544 Iakhs (March 31, 2024; Re. 38,121 lakhs), Further, the company also had 1ssued BGs of Rs.
207 lakhs (March 31, 2024; Rs. 744.22 lakhs) backed by 100% margin (FOR).

Indemnity

Company has given indemnity to Dhivehi Insurance Company Private Limited, Male, Republic of Maldives of USD = 18,79.922.99 (INR equ. Rs. 1,608.86 Lakhs) for
1ssuing performance security in favour of Ministry of National Planning, Housing and infrastructure Male, Republic of Maldives, on behalf of the company for its
Maldives project.[Note: The equivalent Indian Rupee values have been calculated using the respective exchange rates as on the reporting dates: March 31, 2025 USD

18,79,922.99, INR equivalent Rs. 1,608.86 Lakhs (exchange rate: 1 USD = %85.58), March 31, 2024 USD 18,79,922.99, INR equivalent Rs. 1567.37 Lakhs (exchange rate
1080 = 2R 37)

Pledge of shares
The Company has pledged 90% shareholding (no. of shares 9,00,000) of M/s Nagpur Waste Water Management Private Limited (NWWMPL) for NWWMPL's projects
loan of Rs. 48,707 lakhs in favour of NWWMPL's project lender {current outstanding as on March 31, 2025: Rs, 31,859 lakhs; March 31, 2024: Rs. 35,570 lakhs).

The Company has pledged 51% shareholding (no. of shares 5,10,000) of M/s Maheshtala Waste Water Management Private Limited (MWWMPL) for MWWMPL's
project loan of Rs, 10,296 lakhs (FURO 13.50 mullions) in favour of MWWMPL's project lender (current outstanding as on March 31, 2025 Rs. 10,178 lakhs; March 33
2024: Rs. 3,987 lakhs),

The Company has pledged 74% shareholding {no. of shares 92,87,000) of M/s Chandrapur Waste Water Management Private Limited (CWWMPL) for CWWMPL's
projects loan of Rs. 5,044 lakhs in favour of CWWMPL's project lender (current outstanding as on March 31, 2025: Rs. 4,741 lakhs; March 31, 2024: Rs. 5,044 lakhs).

The Company has pledged 51% shareholding (no of shares $,10,000) of M/s Agra Waste Water Management Private Limited (AWWMPL) for AWWMPL's projects loan
of Rs. 22,400 lakhs in favour of AWWMPL's praject lenders (current outstanding as on March 31, 2025: Rs. 14,829 lakhs; March 31, 2024: Rs. 4,000 lakhs).




Vishvaraj Environment Limited (Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)

CIN: U74999MH2008PLC186950
Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2025
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

41 Ratio Analysis and its elements
a) Current Ratio = Current assets divided by Current liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Current assets 1,28,633.11 80,861.50
Current liabilities 1,03,872.46 54,596.42
Ratio (In times) 1.24 1.48
% Change from previous year (16.22%)
b) Return on Equity Ratio = Net profit after tax divided by average equity
For the year ended For the year ended
Particaikns March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Net profit after tax 32,120.55 13,014.49
Average equity*® 59,298.05 40,532.16
Ratio (In %) 54.17% 32.11%
|% Change from previous year 68.70%

*Average equity represents the average of opening and closing total equity.

Reason for change more than 25%:
In FY 24-25, ratio has increased since there is increase in net profit after tax,

c) Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Credit Sales divided by average trade receivables

For the year ended

For the year ended

Paiticilars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)

Credit Sales 1,40,504.88 1,05,854.27

Average Trade Receivables # 71,052.49 44,539.33

Ratio (In times) 1.98 2.38

% Change from previous year (16.80%)

# Trade receivables is included gross of ECL and net of customer advances. Average Trade receivables represents the average of

opening and closing trade receivables.

d) Trade payables turnover ratio = Credit purchases divided by average trade payables

For the year ended

For the year ended

Pt March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)

Credit Purchases 96,898.78 84,397 .36

Average Trade Payables # 66,801.94 37,122.31

Ratio (In times) 1.45 2.27

% Change from previous year (56.73%)

# Trade payable excludes employee payables. Average Trade payable represents the average of opening and closing trade payables.

Reason for change more than 25%:

Trade payables turnover ratio has decreased in FY 24-25 due to increase in avearge trade payables on account of increase in credit

purchases during the year,




e)

g)

h)

Net Capital Turnover Ratio = Sales divided by Net Working capital

For the year ended For the year ended
Pariculars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Revenue from operations (A) 1,40,504.88 1,05,854.27
Current Assets (B) 1,28,633.11 80,861.50
Current Liabilities (C) 1,03,872.46 54,596.42
Net Working Capital (D = B - C) 24,760.65 26,265.08
Ratio (In times) (E= A / D) 5.67 4.03
% Change from previous year 40.80%
Reason for change more than 25%:
Net capital turnover ratio has increased during the year on acount of increase in revenue from operations during the year.
Net profit ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Sales
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Profit after tax 32,120.55 13,014.49
Revenue from operations 1,40,504.88 1,05,854.27
Ratio (In %) 23% 12%
% Change from previous year 85.94%

Reason for change more than 25%:

Net profit ratio has increased in FY 24-25 since there is increase in profit after tax and revenue from operations.

Return on Capital employed (pre -tax) = Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT

divided by Capital Employed

For the year ended For the year ended

Paticilsis March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)

Profit before tax (A) 29,266.94 16,318.04
Finance cost (B} 2,233.15 2,239.53
EBIT (C) = (A+B) 31,500.09 18,557.57
Tangible net worth *(D) 60,384.78 41,322.59
Total debt (E) 35,337.75 38.19
Deferred tax liability (F) - -
Capital Employed (G)=(D+E+F) 95,722.53 41,360.78
Ratio (In %) 33% 45%
% Change from previous year (26.66%)

*Tangible net worth = Net worth (Shareholder's fund) -Intangible assets -Deferred tax assets

Reason for change more than 25%

In FY 24-25, ratio has decreased due to loan taken from related party during the year which resulted in increase of total debts.

Debt Equity ratio = Total debts divided by Total Equity

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars (Restated)
Total debts 35,337.75 38.19
Shareholder's funds 73,456.63 45,139.46
Ratio (In times) 0.48 0.00
% Change from previous year 99.82%

Reason for change more than 25%:

In FY 24-25, ratio has increased due to loan taken from related party during the year which resulted in increase of total debts.




i) Debt service coverage ratio= Earnings available for debt services dividend by total interest and principal repayments

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars (Restated)

Profit after tax (A) 32,120.55 13,014.49

Add: Non cash operating expenses and finance cost

- Depreciation and amortisation 610.80 523.88

- Finance cost 2,233.15 2,239.53

- Loss / (Gain) on disposal of property, plant & equipment (0.25) 1.79

Total Non-cash operating expenses and finance cost (Pre-tax) (B) 2,843.70 2,765.20
2,128.00 2,069.26

Total Non-cash operating expenses and finance cost (Post-tax) (C= B (1-Tax rate))

Earnings available for debt services (D = A + C) 34,248.55 15,083.74

Debt service

Interest (E) 4.72 637.97

Lease payments (F) 174.00 174.99

Principal repayments (G) (7,957.61) (25,607.42)

Total Interest and principal repayments (H =E + F + G) (7,778.89) (24,794.46)

Ratio (In times) (I=D / H) (4.40) (0.61)

% Change from previous year 623.72%

Reason for change more than 25%:

In FY 24-25, ratio has increased due to increase in profit after tax alongwith decrease in debt repayments made during the year.

i) Return on Investment*
Return on Investment* = Profit divided by cost of investment: NA

*This ratio is not applicable since the Company does not have any projects/investments other than current operations
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Vishvaraj Environment Limited (Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)
CIN: U74999MH2008PLC186950

Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2025

All amounts are % in Lakhs unless otherwise stated
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Significant events after the reporting period

The name of the Company has been changed from Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited to Vishvaraj Environment Limited with effect from June 5, 2025, as per approval
received from the Registrar of Companies, Central Processing Centre, Manesar, Haryana,

b On July 21, 2025, pursuant to the shareholder's approval dated March 28, 2025, the Company allotted 21,3(,00,000 equity shares of face value INR 5/- each as fully paid up
bonus shares thereby capitalizing Rs 10,650.00 lakhs out of retained earnings, which has been transferred to the share capital account. Bonus shares were issued to eligitile
shareholders whaose names appeared in the Register of Members as on July 14, 2025, in the ratio of 1.51 {i.e., 1.5 bonus shares faor every 1 existing equity share held) These
Equity Shares are considered an increase in the nominal value of the Company's equity share capital and not as income in lieu of dividend.

44 Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassed wherever necessary to correspond with the current year’s classification/disclosure.
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The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on September &, 2025

In terms of our report attached of even date Far and on behalf of Board of Directors of
For ).P. Joshi & Associates Vishvaraj Environment Limited
Charteredfficcountants {Formerly known as Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited)
ICAI FRI116953W A
CQ(CEQLL{' Jerp—
\NCL =/
CA J.P. Joshi \‘03 R (L Arun Lakhani Suresh Agiwal
Partner led etz Managing Director Director
M. No. 102218 o DIN: 00294583 DIN. 01660403

UDIN:- 251022 18BMIQFM5024
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Girfsh Nadkarni Amit Sonkusare
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
M. No.. F11853
Place Nagpur Place: Mumbai
Date: September 5, 2025 Date: September S, 2025




